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VALE
South Maroubra Surf Life Saving Club extends its sincere 
sympathy to the families and friends of those who passed on 
during the season, with heartfelt gratitude from those of us 
who were privileged to have known them.
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60TH ANNUAL  
GENERAL 
MEETING
Notice is hereby given that the 60th Annual General 
Meeting of South Maroubra Surf Life Saving Club Inc.,  
will be held at the South Maroubra Surf Club on  
Sunday, 29th July 2018, commencing at 2.00pm.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AGENDA
•	 Welcome to Guest, Visitors and Members

•	 Confirmation of minutes of the 59th Annual Report

•	 Correspondence

•	 Adoption of 2017/2018 Annual Report

•	 Adoption of 2017/2018 Financial Statement

•	 Election of 2018/2019 Office Bearers

•	 Life Member Nomination

•	 Honour Blazer Nomination

•	 Urgent General Business 

Yours Faithfully

NICOLE COONEY
Hon Secretary & Public Officer 



2

CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 

It is my pleasure to present to you the 
2017/18 annual report, a season where 
we as a club have achieved so much on 
so many fronts resulting in the recognition 
and recent awarding of the prestigious 
Champion Club of Sydney Branch  
award which I must say has a very nice 
ring to it and there’s plenty of good 
reason why South Maroubra took out the 
distinguished title.

Here’s a snap shot into the year that was the  
2017/18 season!

LIFESAVING

Our core business being Lifesaving have delivered a solid 
year of performance on the beach and in the water with ‘No 
Lives Lost’ and a whole lot of great lifesavers recruited and 
trained up. Throughout the season our lifesavers carried out 
101 Rescues and 3153 Preventative actions, 556 First Aid 
cases and delivered 7671 Patrol hours.

Our Lifesaving and Education Team recognises we need to 
continue to build the number of lifesavers whilst broadening 
the skills base on the beach and in the water. So, in the 
lifesaving space, a big tick and thank you to the entire 
lifesaving team led by DOL Damien Woods, Ronny Krite, 
Nicole Cooney, Michael Fernandez, Patrol Captains and 
Instructors who provide the leadership each week necessary 
to get the job done. As stated lifesaving is our core business 
and as such it remains all of our responsibility to build and 
support the members in red and yellow. On a sad note 
Damien will be standing down as Director of Lifesaving 
after a number of years in the job but is sure to continue to 
support and build South Maroubra moving forward just in a 
different way. 

YOUTH/NIPPERS

We had big numbers, with up to 700 at one-point, with 
great parent participation and generally a comprehensive 
Surf Education Program which was successfully concluded 
in March. Tenth place overall at the NSW State 
Championships for Competition, and we have growing 
numbers of officials and quality coaches. The highlight this 

season was certainly staring in the ABC ME 14 part series 
of Nippers, which reflected well on the entire Lifesaving and 
Nipper Community, and still available on ABC (ME) iview 
in case you missed it. Nippers continues to be an area 
within our club where there is so much scope for continued 
development, sponsorship and growth so another big tick 
and well done to the entire leadership and support group.

Running Nippers is a massive job and can only be carried 
out with the cooperation and involvement of committed 
leaders which comes in the form of parents and supporters 
getting their hands dirty and becoming involved. I was 
thrilled to see a whole lot of nipper parents obtain their 
Bronze qualification and not only carrying out water safety 
with the kids but supporting our surf patrols as well. Well 
done to you all!!

On a side note Marcelo our Director of Youth will be 
stepping down at the end of this year, I’d very much like to 
thank Marcelo on a sterling effort leading and building our 
Youth section. Marcelo will continue in the Youth space at 
Branch level and sure to remain involved at our club. Thank 
you, Marcelo!

COMPETITION

This season we saw new Director of Competition Tom 
McJannett take on this challenging job which he carried out 
with gusto and interest, and whilst we have a long way to go 
in building diversity in competition, we are on the right path. 
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Next season Tom and I along with other clubs in Randwick 
District will be looking at a new coaching structure where we 
join with other nearby clubs to offer increased opportunity. 

Boat Captain Phil is busily building our boat section 
with some exciting developments to be presented to the 
membership early next season, our IRB section are fully into 
their competition season with some positive results and new 
touring management team. With new equipment coming 
we are sure that this very important section will continue 
to thrive. The boards and skis section has seen a revival 
led by a group of dedicated trainers and up and coming 
young competitors. Club stalwart Shane White with a group 
of Masters Competitors acting as coaches has formed a 
fantastic partnership with our up and coming kids to form 
a really exciting and growing group of ski and board 
paddlers. I really hope we can continue to support and 
develop this important group.

RETENTION, DIVERSITY AND  
COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

Yes, you guessed it we ticked the box here as we are 
blessed to have a diverse and multicultural membership base 
that continues to grow. We are a place where everyone 
is welcome to participate in the many activities that we run 
annually whether it be Sunday socials with nipper parents 
and Water Safety after Sunday activities, participating in 
skills development opportunities for our Juniors, determining 
and building the right competition opportunities for the 
club and in doing so addressing the issue of attracting and 
retaining adolescence and young adults who remain a 
challenge in terms of retention. We participate in countless 
internal and external aquatic activities and in doing so 
support the broader Sydney Community in particular charity 
groups, whilst continuing to build lines of funding for the club 
through planned events. Our club again ran the very popular 
Octoberfest, Ocean Swim, Sportsman’s Day, Nipper Trivia 
all requiring significant planning and execution but also vital 
income earning events.

CLUB NEWS WRAP!

This year our club was unfortunately hit with some really sad 
news with the passing of significant members and friends. 
We said goodbye to Founding and Life Member John Ludlow 
who was such an important influence and mentor to the club 
and Dolphin Winter Swimmers over a long period of time. 
We also bid farewell to District Permanent Member Geoff 
Martin, Shane ‘Bronze’ Whittaker and former Club Captain 
and Dolphins Captain Ken Murphy brother of Life Member 
Max Murphy. In another sad development we said goodbye 
to long-time supporter and Club Patron Bill Haigh who did so 
much to help the club in the earlier years. Thank you to all of 

these important friends for what you have done for our club 
and a stronger community.

Special friendships and life long bonds have been 
developed in our club over the years so importantly each 
season we try to continue to build and develop our social 
aspect. We do this as the social scene is an important 
way of retaining members and building friendships and 
assists in building unity and mateship. Social events allow 
for the passing on of tales and stories from generation to 
generation, older members to more junior or new members 
allowing some traditions to continue. Our club works hard 
to build a fun and social aspect by running events such as 
the sportsman’s day, trivia, gold members and presentation 
days/events, but also in the weekly Sunday socials 
where we love seeing all of our friends join us during the 
course of the day for drinks and a bite to eat. We’d love 
to continue to develop Sunday socials and even thinking 
of a monthly music treat where we book various musical 
artists to perform for members. To do this we would need 
to attract consistent numbers and would offer the club bbq 
for use and obviously bar would be open to help fund the 
activities. We would really like to hear your feedback on 
this concept so as to determine whether it is worthwhile 
pursuing. Just remember everyone is welcome for Sunday 
socials and State of Origin nights including friends of 
members, and with Uber rides just around the corner there 
has never been a better time to get involved. 

On the communication front, South Maroubra made a big 
effort to improve our member communication and experience 
as we are committed to providing timely and comprehensive 
information to members. This season a great deal of work 
was done by our Club Secretary Nicole Cooney refreshing 
the club website making it a more modern and interesting 

ADMINISTRATION
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CHAIRMAN’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

site, she also refreshed the club’s traditional newsletter 
‘Blu-ing’ making it a fun and modern form of information 
exchange. Facebook is proving a popular and effective way 
of delivering timely messages to members along with the 
Surfguard messaging system. We trust the membership has 
appreciated the improvements.

WELL THAT’S ANOTHER SEASON  
WRAP UP! 

That about concludes what is best described as a full on but 
highly successful year for us at South Maroubra. It would 
not have occurred without the commitment and friendship 
of our many Leaders and Members, our key people such 
as Caretakers Barry and Leslie that keep the place looking 
beautiful with Barry also our bar manager, Club Licensee 
Gus who keeps the entertainment happening and bar 
stocked, our many wonderful sponsors in particular Maroubra 
Seals, Randwick City Council, The Juniors Group of Clubs, 
Club Randwick, Top Cat Catering, local pubs, clubs and 
businesses the entire list of sponsors are detailed in this 
annual report. We are committed to building our sponsorship 
base and always interested in forming partnerships.

Behind every successful club is a Politician and in our case 
we lucky to have our State and Federal Politicians namely 
the great Michael Daley MP and Matty Thistlethwaite MP 
plus we’re really fortunate to have a great group of Randwick 
City Councillors, too many to name, who continue to support 
us. To our Life Members that continue to assist the club thank 
you. To Linda, Paul Duffy and Ken Artur forming the nucleolus 
of our Memorabilia Committee thank you I’m sure members 
will be delighted with what is planned. Thanks to Jack Shaw, 
Life Member, for all that he does to assist and promote the 

club and all the members that help us in so many ways and 
far too many to mention, thank you. To Michele Lo in the 
club office each Tuesday and Friday assisted by June Burgess 
thank you for your commitment.

Lastly, I was honoured to be awarded the Order of 
Australia Medal for service to Surf Life Saving, community 
and our club. This award I accept on behalf of all the 
members past and present that work so hard for a better 
community and club.

I thank the entire Board of Management for your friendship 
and support over the year and hope for another terrific 
season 2018/19.

PAUL ‘STRETCH’ FOWNES OAM

Club Chairman
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Two major projects have been tasked by the BOM, that 
being a review of the Constitution and of course the 
Memorabilia Project.

Our Club’s current Constitution 2011 is outdated and 
lacking relevance in some areas for the many changes 
within Surf Life Saving. The Constitution Committee has been 
tasked to prepare an updated and more current constitution 
and produce a separate Regulations document for the 
Club incorporating a list of recommendations of change 
from Board of Management. Both documents are nearly 
completed in their first draft and will be presented to the 
members of the Constitution Committee over coming months 
for review and finalising. Once finalised by the Constitution 
Committee, the new documents will be presented to a 
Special General Meeting of the Club for adoption. It is 
envisaged that this will be completed before end of season 
2018/19.

The other major project which has been in preparation for 
about 2 years now is the Memorabilia Project. As reported 
to the members in Club News Blu-ing a few months ago, 
the project sub-committee has made recommendation to 
BOM with engagement of Focus Productions to bring our 
Memorabilia Project to fruition. I would like to recognise the 
members of this sub-committee who have put in months and 
months of research to come up with the best options for the 
Club to recognise and display its history. To Ken Arthur, Paul 
Duffy, Peter Murphy and John Park, thank you very much 
for your persistence and perseverance with this project. 
The next few months will be very exciting as we see the 
entrance and Heritage room walls come to life with visuals. 
Watch this space!

The Surf Club Gym has continued to provide an opportunity 
for members to work-out and keep fit. We do encourage 
members to use this great facility and purchase a Gym 
Membership each year. Patrolling members are offered this 
facility at a discounted rate. Thank you to Phil Stivano and 
Mark Hastings who assist me in the role of ensuring the 

safety and upkeep of this member facility annually and of 
course our great Caretaker Barry for the regular cleaning.

In addition to the above, we also recognised and 
remembered our dear friend ‘Bernie Kelly 20 years on’ and 
all members who have passed away with a get together 
at the club in January. A great afternoon of friendship and 
remembrance to acknowledge so many Club contributors 
who have sadly passed on. 

In February we were joined at the Club by the ‘SMOFs’ for 
their get together, which they hold every 2 years. To Geoff 
Starkey and his fellow organisers, thank you for keeping this 
contact with the Club and sharing so many great stories. 
This group of past and present members are collectively a 
combination of the history knowledge of South Maroubra!

On behalf of the members I also wish to acknowledge 
Bob Wurth who has provided us with the great club history 
stories which we have been sharing with the membership 
via Blu-ing this season. If you have missed reading these 
history documents, they are also available on the Club 
website www.southmaroubrasurfclub.com.au/club-history.
html. Club History is very important and comes in many forms 
of the written word and photos. There is no form of history 
more important than the Club Annual Report. I commend our 
Club Secretaries past and present who have all ensured that 
each year the report accurately documents every aspect of 
the club. To all our members, you are our history and your 
contribution is priceless.

LINDA PERRIN
Vice Chairman

The season has once again been a rewarding one for 
our Club with many highlights and achievements which 
our sections will report on throughout the report. In the 
Vice Chair position, my contribution to the Club is mainly 
project driven by the BOM and a support role to my 
fellow Directors and their committees.

VICE CHAIRMAN’S REPORT
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Bill Haigh
Life Patron of South 
Maroubra Surf Life 
Saving Club

On the 15th November, 
2017 we were 
saddened to hear of the 
passing of Bill Haigh, Life 
Patron of South Maroubra 
Surf Life Saving Club at 
the age of 93.

Born in Liverpool, England on the 25th May 1924 , Bill 
immigrated with his parents to Australia  and was educated 
at Malabar Public School. Bill worked at Bunnerong 
Power Station from 1948 to 1959. He was elected as an 
Alderman to Randwick Municipal Council in 1956 , serving 
two terms as Mayor from 1962 to 1968. He remains the 
longest continuous serving Mayor of Randwick.

Bill was elected as Member for Maroubra and entered 
State Parliament in 1968 where he served a further 15 
years. He served as Minister Assisting the Premier from 
1976 to 1978, Minister for Services 1977 to 1978 and 
as Minister for Corrective services from 1978 to 1981.

Bill Haigh loved our Club, which he recounted many times. 
He was always willing to help with advice and guidance 
and substantial support when needed. The South Maroubra 
Surf Life Saving Club building was officially opened by 
The Honourable W.H Haigh together with Club President 
T.J. Dynan on Sunday 26 October 1969. The plaque 
commemorating this event now adorns the wall of the 
Clubhouse adjacent the front entranceway. South Maroubra 
had no greater friend in those difficult early years than 
William Henry ‘Bill‘ Haigh.

Bill was a people person and was well loved and 
respected in the community as well as by our Club 
members. He has left behind a wonderful legacy.

R.I.P Bill Haigh.

John Ludlow
On 23 May 2018 we were 
sadden with the news of the 
passing of Life Member John 
Ludlow. John was a foundation 
member of the Club who gave 
over 50 years of patrol service 
on the beach and held many key 
positions within the Club during 
his decades of membership right 
through to his passing. John 
gained his Bronze Medallion 
award on 29 March 1953. 

John was instrumental in many areas of the Club especially 
with clubhouse building in the early days. John Ludlow was the 
Dolphins Winter Swimming Club – the longest serving President, an 
achievement which I doubt will be surpassed by any other President. 
Within the Surf Club John held positions including Vice Cub 
Captain, Club Captain, and Vice President for 15 years, he was a 
member of many sub committees actively sharing his wisdom and 
knowledge of South Maroubra. John was a successful competitor 
in his early days as a swimmer and later turning to his passion of 
Surfboat rowing and competed with success at State, Australian and 
World Masters Championships. 

John was bestowed the honour of Life Membership in the 
1981/82 season.

We salute you John and thank you sincerely for everything you did 
for our Club. We extend our deepest sympathy to Meryl and his 
family. 

RIP John Ludlow.

Ken Murphy
On May 7 we we learnt 
of the passing of another 
founding member of our 
Club - Ken Murphy.

Ken came to South 
Maroubra from Malabar 
with the group of dedicated men who saw the vision for a Surf Club 
at South Maroubra. Ken was an active member of the club for many 
years and held key position of Club Captain from 1968 - 1970 
and was Captain of the ‘Dolphins Winter Swimming Club’ from 
1961-1969.

Ken is the brother of our much loved and respected Life Member 
Max Murphy. We extend our sincere sympathy to Max, Joan and 
Family.  Another great member who contributed to our Club.  

RIP Ken Murphy.

VALES
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CLUB MAJOR AWARDS

Clubman of the Year
Nicole Cooney 

Associate of the Year
Paul Ryan 

Most Outstanding Senior  
of the Year
Marcelo Garay 

Most Outstanding Junior  
of the Year
Cooper Stokes 

Most Outstanding Cadet  
of the Year
Drew McJannett 

LIFESAVING AWARDS

Junior Lifesaver of the Year
Hugo Defina-Sperando 

Senior Lifesaver of the Year
Nixy Krite 

IRB Person of the Year
Kevin ‘Ester’ Fee 

Rookie Trainer of the Year
Isabella Garay 

Training Officer of the Year
Michael Fernandez 

Patrol Captain of the Year
Ronny Krite 

SURF SPORTS AWARDS

Board Competitor of the Year
Luc Christensen 

Beach Competitor of the Year
Kristy Smith 

Swim Competitor of the Year
Drew McJannett 

Masters Competitor of the Year
Michael Renford 

Surfboat Person of the Year
Phil Stivano 

Coach of the Year
Andrew Newrick 

IRB Competitor of the Year
Laurie Golsby 

SLSS BRANCH AWARDS OF EXCELLENCE

CLUB AWARDS

MEMBERS RECOGNITION

Champion Club of the Year
South Maroubra Surf Life Saving Club 

Branch Member of the Year
Simon Torsellini  
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Chairman
Paul Fownes 

Vice Chairman
Linda Perrin 

Hon Secretary 
and Public 
Officer
Nicole Cooney 

Director of 
Finance
Yvette Rutherford 

Director of 
Lifesaving 
Services
Damien Woods 

Director of 
Competition
Tom McJannett 

Director 
of Youth 
Development
Marcelo Garay 

Assistant 
Director of 
Lifesaving
Ronald Krite 

Assistant 
Director of 
Competition
John Rooney 

Assistant 
Director of 
Youth
Uri Teitler 

Assistant 
Secretary
Maria Garay 

Education 
Coordinator
Michael 
Fernandez 

Treasurer
June Burgess 

Lifesaving 
Registrar
Nicole Cooney 

Competition 
Secretary
Michelle Lo 

Youth Registrar
Maria Garay 

IRB Coordinator
William 
Shaddock
Damien Woods 

Gear & 
Equipment 
Coordinator
Ken Hudson 

Nipper Gear 
Steward
Paul Ryan 

Building 
Coordinator
Paul Fownes 

OH&S
Brett Milsop 

Masters 
Coordinator
Nixy Krite 

Boat 
Coordinator
Phil Stivano 

Board/Ski 
Coordinator
David Lowlett 

Coaching 
Coordinator
Owen Skjeime 

R&R 
Coordinator
Linda Perrin 

Social 
Coordinator
Barry Osborne 

Touring Team 
Manager 
Winter
Owen Skjeime 
Bronte Chadwick 
Laurie Golsby 

Disciplinary 
Committee
Ken Arthur
Paul Duffy
John Marks
John Shaw 

Constitution 
Committee
Ken Arthur
Paul Duffy
Linda Perrin
Damien Woods 

Life 
Membership 
Panel
Ken Arthur
Paul Duffy
John Park
Damien Woods 

CLUB OFFICERS 2017/18 

10 YEAR MEMBERSHIP COMPARISON as at 6/6/18

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT MEETING ATTENDANCE TABLE 2017/18 

17/18 16/17 15/16 14/15 13/14 12/13 11/12 10/11 09/10 08/09

Life Members 21 22 21 20 20 21 21 21 22 21

Long Service 34 33 35 37 25 42 43 39 43 36

Reserve Active 13 13 20 20 24 18 23 28 31 23

Active (18yrs and Over) 145 125 123 133 125 106 99 122 105 134

Active (15-18yrs) 27 33 40 49 31 33 37 31 29 39

Cadets 41 40 26 15 39 30 23 32 21 49

Junior Activates (5-13yrs) 669 602 611 670 637 618 586 616 394 393

Awards 1 2 1 1 1 2 2 2 1 5

Associate 33 32 29 32 27 31 42 41 40 56

General 157 135 140 132 179 136 114 116 128 38

Probationary 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 4

Honorary 5 5 3 8 10 9 7 9 9 3

TOTAL MEMBERSHIP 1146 1043 1049 1117 1118 1046 997 1057 824 801

Officer	 Possible	 Attended

Chairman: Paul Fownes	 11 	 9

Vice Chairman: Linda Perrin 	 11 	 10 

Hon. Secretary: Nicole Cooney 	 11 	 11 

Director of Finance: Yvette Rutherford 	 11 	 8 

Officer	 Possible	 Attended

Director of Lifesaving Services: Damien Woods 	 11 	 8 

Director of Youth Development: Marcelo Garay 	 11 	 8 

Director of Competition: Tom McJannett 	 11 	 10



9

I’m happy to say that once again we have No Lives Lost 
between the flags during the season. As a Surf Life Saving 
Club, we should never forget that keeping the public safe on 
our beach is and will always be our primary objective. We 
are lucky to have a great team of members who dedicated 
their time and skills to this objective and in such keep our 
beach safe with expecting nothing in return.  

Surf Lifesaving is an institution that offers many avenues 
and opportunities to people of differing ages, abilities, 
experiences and backgrounds. It’s quite rare that an 
organisation provides so many opportunities, especially 
a volunteer one. The diverse range of opportunities and 
as such the many different roles and the volunteer hours 
members donate to Surf Lifesaving deserves recognition 
and acknowledgement. On the beach we have a fantastic 
team of Lifesavers who give many hours of service to 
patrols and water safety. To prepare these members for the 
responsibilities we have our dedicated Education Team 
who give so many hours of their spare time to ensuring our 
members are highly trained. 

We have motivated competitors who benefit from volunteer 
coaches, section leaders, surf sport officials and a 

competition team. Behind the scenes, the time devoted to 
administration tasks and finance cannot be forgotten. 

Members also freely donate their skills and services towards 
fundraising, catering, social events, bar service, repairing 
club gear and equipment, and upgrading club facilities. 
Our Nipper Team work hard in preparing and supporting 
our junior members – our future lifesavers and leaders. 

We’ve had a wonderful social season also with some great 
events - to name a few we had Octoberfest, Sportsman’s 
Day, Trivia Night, and Origin Night. To add to this our social 
Sundays are growing, and I hope to see more and more 
of our members come to the club on Sunday afternoons in 
summer to share stories and make new friends. 

Our social media presence continues to grow with the 
South Maroubra SLSC Facebook and Instagram pages, 
and viewed by the majority of our membership. If you’re 
not already following us be sure to start now, the pages are 
a great way to keep up to date of everything that is South 
Maroubra including events, club information and of course 
all the great photos (new and old). 

This season I had the pleasure of developing and launching 
our new website, which I hope has been a welcome refresh 
to our web presence. I was also happy to revive ‘Blu-ing’ the 
club newsletter, creating a digital version. I truly hope you 
have enjoyed both these and always welcome feedback and 
suggestions for improvement. 

I would like to thank everyone on the Board of Management, 
Lifesaving, Nippers, and Competition Committees for the 
help and guidance throughout this season. Thank you to 
Michelle and June in the office for all your work. I’m looking 
forward to the new season. 

NICOLE COONEY
Hon Secretary & Public Officer

SMSLSC MEMBER PROTECTION 
INFORMATION OFFICERS (PBTR)

Nicole Cooney

Marcelo Garay

Maria Garay

Justin Lo

Michelle Lo

Sarah Marshall

Darren McLean

Linda Perrin

Yvette Rutherford

Greg Turton

Andrew Wem

ADMINISTRATION REPORT 

On behalf of the Board of Management, 
I present for your consideration and 
adoption the 60th Annual Report and 
Financial Statement of South Maroubra 
Surf Life Saving Club Inc for the Season 
2017/18. 
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DIRECTOR OF FINANCE REPORT

It gives me great pleasure to present the 
annual financial report for the South 
Maroubra Surf Life Saving Club for 
period 2017/18. At the completion of the 
financial season the club is showing an 
operating profit of $99,974 compared to 
last season’s profit of $42,710.

REVENUES

Traditional sources of income throughout the season have 
remained consistent with previous years. Membership 
revenue equated to 16%, donations/sponsorships/grants 
43% & club activities 31%. 

Overall Membership increased this season by 11%. The 
Active 15 to 18 year category decreased by 16% but 
growth of 17% was recorded in our Active 18 years and 
over memberships. Nippers and General categories also 
increased.

This season completed the 5th year of our association with 
Top Cat Catering who lease out the clubhouse Horizons 
Function Centre. The BOM are pleased to advise that Top 
Cat Catering have continued its lease for another 3 years.

The Income report reflects an overall 7% increase in income 
for the season which is reflected by increases in Clubhouse 
Income and Memberships. Once again our club was 
successful in securing government grant funding from the 
Dept. Family & Community to install clubhouse shutters 
to protect the clubhouse from strong southerly weather 
conditions and funding from the Community Building 
Partnership to purchase a new surf boat. All other revenue 
forms were fairly consistent with previous season. 

Total income for the year $543,994 

EXPENDITURE

Building & Property expenses increased by 30% due to the 
installation of clubhouse Shutters, big increases in electricity 
costs, lift and fire compliance costs are also steadily 
increasing. We made some improvements to our clubhouse 
hot water system. 

The figures show a 50% decrease in the competition sector 
due to a reduction in carnival entry fees as our boat section 
did not participate in the Ocean Thunder Surf Boat Series 
and we did not send a competition team to the Summer 

Other Income 2%

Net Merchandise Sales 1%

Net Events/Fundraising 7%

Membership 16%

Clubhouse income 31%

Donations/Grants 43%

Member Expenses 9%

Events & Fundraising 11%

Nippers 14%

Lifesaving 12%

Competition 9%

Building & Property 29%

Admin & General Operating 16%

REVENUE

EXPENDITURE
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Australian Championships held in Perth. A number of 
new racing boards and ski’s were purchased throughout 
the season. 

A reduction in costs for the Lifesaving Section has also 
been recorded as we did not roll over/replace our ATV this 
season, our club currently has two ATV’s. A fully equipped IRB 
was purchased during this financial period with delivery due 
in November via the Souths Juniors CDSE grant money along 
with the purchase of new radios, resus manikins, IRB motors 
and rescue boards.

Admin/General operations of the club costs have slightly 
decreased with expenditure in this area including the 
continued employment of part time office administration 
which was increased this year to cover Sunday Mornings. 
Member capitation’s continues to take up 30% of this 
sections costs. 

Overall club expenditure for the season decreased by 5% 
from last year. 

Total Overall Expenditure $444,020 

FUNCTIONS, EVENTS AND FUNDRAISING

There were no major changes to the activities performed by 
the club in the area of Fundraising. The annual Oktoberfest, 
Sportsman Day and Ocean Swim were held throughout 
the season, The Oktoberfest and Sportsman Day were 
profitably activities however a loss was recorded for the 
Ocean Swim due to the unfavourable conditions on the day 
resulting in low participation numbers. The annual Golf Day 
was regrettably cancelled for the season and a small profit 
was made from the U8 Nipper carnival hosted by South 
Maroubra.

Sections within the club continue to enjoy returns for their 
efforts from the Trivia and Boaties ‘State of Origin’ nights. The 
IRB Winter Touring team section continues to provide ‘water 
safety’ for a number of external events, bringing in funds to 
offset their touring team accommodation expenses.

Thanks to our Club Licensee Gus Taylor, Caretakers Barry 
& Leslie, Bar Staff, Tony Shaw (Oktoberfest), Paul Fownes, 
Yvette & Grant Rutherford, Tom McJannett and Linda Perrin 
(Sportsman Day), Marcelo Garay (Trivia & U8 Carnival), 
Phil Stivano (State of Origin Night), Simon Smith and Nicole 
Cooney (Ocean Swim) and members that contributed to the 
running of all our club events and fundraising activities.

An increase in expenditure on member activities was 
recorded this year as we continue to acknowledge and thank 
our member’s for their involvement and contributions. Member 
Functions included the Gold Members/Associates Function, 
Start, Mid and End of Season Lifesaving/club socials. 
Expenditure also went towards a few youth group activities, 
patrolling members lunches and bar refreshments. 

SPONSORSHIP

Souths Juniors donated funds to our club from the CDSE 
(Randwick ClubGRANTS Scheme) $40,000 allowing for 
the purchase of vital lifesaving equipment. Thank you to 
Matraville RSL also contributing via the CDSE program. 
Randwick City also honoured long standing agreements 
with the club and continued their grant to assist the club 
with expenses related to the building and administration. 

We acknowledge the Maroubra Seals Club for their 
continued support. To Bisley Workwear, Rams, Sydney 
City Volkswagen, Caltex, Channel 9 Audi Centre and 
Cameron Airlie from NG Farah for their continued 
sponsorship and support of our club. Further on in the 
Annual Report is a list and acknowledgment to all of 
our club sponsors and supporters where we pass on our 
sincere thanks and gratitude.

In closing the BOM are still committed to the installation of 
Solar Panels with a number of grant programs currently under 
review to assist with this expensive clubhouse improvement. 
A grant application has been lodged for clubhouse mid 
floor bathroom and kitchen upgrades. A large financial 
commitment has also been made by the BOM to complete 
our clubhouse ‘memorabilia’ project this coming season 
along with contractual maintenance planned for the Horizons 
Room. It would be fare to say that the profits of this season 
have been earmarked for the coming season.

Thank you to Michelle Lo, June Burgess and Maria Garay 
for all your assistance in the club office. My personal thanks 
to club member Kelly Nichols, for her invaluable and expert 
guidance in the preparation of the financial statements 
for the club Auditor and finally my sincere thanks to Club 
Chairman Paul Fownes and Vice Chair Linda Perrin for their 
encouragement and support of my portfolio over the season.  

YVETTE RUTHERFORD
Director of Finance 

The South Maroubra Surf Life Saving Club Inc. is 
compliant with the ATO and ACNC charity compliance 
requirements and therefore entitled to state to the public 
that it is entitled to ongoing endorsement as a Public 
Benevolent Institution with Deductible Gift Recipient status. 

FINANCE
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COMMITTEE REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2018
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
AS AT 30 APRIL 2018

The accompanying notes form part of these accounts.
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FINANCIAL REPORT

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 APRIL 2018

The accompanying notes form part of these accounts.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2018

The accompanying notes form part of these accounts.
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FINANCIAL REPORT

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2018
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2018
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FINANCIAL REPORT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2018
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FINANCIAL REPORT

INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
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INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
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CLUB SPONSORS

South Maroubra SLSC would like to thank the following 
sponsors for their support throughout the year.

Maroubra Seals

Product in Kind
Maroubra Seals Club 
Rix Refrigeration
Look Design
Bisley Workwear 
PIA Security Services
Dovinat
Sands Hotel
Pall Mall Manufacturing
Mick Fisher
Walsh Village Pharmacy
Sold Out 
Site Pizza Bar

Government
BSEF Gear and Equipment
Department of Family & Community
NSW Community Building Partnership
Randwick City Council
 

Sportsman Day Donations
Top Cat Catering
Cabramtta Bowling Club
Coogee Bay Hotel
EBP RSL Club
World Bar
South Sydney Juniors
The Bay Hotel & Diner
The Juniors - Kingsford
The Juniors - Malabar
Maroubra Junction Hotel
Maroubra Seals Club
Matraville RSL
Petersham RSL

Surf Life Saving Assocation
Clubs NSW – Championship events/
Club Grants
DHL – Patrol Uniforms
SLS NSW
Telstra – SMS service

SOUTHS JUNIORS 
MAROUBRA SEALS CLUB

Audi Centre Sydney

CSJ Seafood

Club Randwick 

Caltex

Channel 9

Matraville RSL

N G Farah Real Estate - 
Cameron Airlie

Rams Sydney South East

Sydney City Volkswagen

Top Cat Catering
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This is the time where I would like to remind everyone 
that our Bernie Kelly bar is open each and every Sunday 
throughout the season from 10:30am until there is no more 
people. The bar is also open to the public at this time and I 
was reminded many times through the season that we had 
“the best kept secret” in Sydney. This is why I would like to 
eagerly invite you to conduct all your personal celebrations 
and occasions on Sundays down at the Bernie Kelly Bar, 
because you get all the facilities for free and if you give us 
notice we can set tables up for your party. It’s a wonderful 
Sunday feeling sitting at tables on the beachside lawn 
listening to laid back music.

February 22 saw a new social initiative where the SMOF’s 
were joined by many past and present members to celebrate 
everything blu-ing. The day was organised in conjunction 
with Jack Stent Shaw. Many thanks to Linda Perrin who 
provided a wonderful slide show highlighting the life of 
Bernie Kelly in particular, but also the wonderful history of 
South Maroubra Surf Life Saving Club. Bernie’s brother also 
kindly donated a sum to be put behind the bar. Bluey Jenvey 
performed admirably as celebrity guest chef. Stretch gave 
a great speech welcoming and honouring all past members 
whilst thanking current members for their attendance. 
Hopefully this day can become an annual event.

As usual, our season just gone, saw some wonderful events 
held. The NRL Grand Final day celebration was once again 
a huge hit with some really good numbers and heaps of 
fun with auctions and first try scorers, Clive Churchill medal 
raffles and more. Oktoberfest proved a monster event again 
with the hoards making their way out onto the park to serve 
up the great Bavarian food fare and the wheat beer by the 
gallon. The Oompapa band entertained all and sundry 
throughout the day. BBQ team was again headed up by 
Jack STENT Shaw with his trusty crew of cooks and servers; 
Bob Higgins, Peter Bulldog Murphy, Bob McCoid, Bluey 
Jenvey, Gillian, Christine, John “Skid” Marks, Tony The Bone 
Johnson, Douggie, Geoff the Fireman, Jen, Tenley, Cait, 
Helen (Jen’s sister). The cash registers were well managed 
by Rainy Taylor, Shelly Dubois, Ann Engel and Linda Perrin. 
The bar with the German liquid amber flowing, as ever, was 
professionally manned by Lionel Roser, Richard Engel, The 
Brick and Big Dave with Nick Mellick, Tom McJannett, Trevor 
Perrin and Greg Morris providing crucial logistic support. I 
would like to thank Oscar Zechner from Pure Drop Liquor for 
their ongoing support and sponsorship for our Oktoberfest 
event.

LICENSEE REPORT

Once again, another wonderful year with 
all things social with the Best Surf Club 
in the world. I must say it’s very easy to 
execute the tasks of Licensee as there are 
so many wonderful, friendly and joyous 
people and occasions to fill our calendar. 
Whilst appreciating that our fundamental 
core business is saving lives and serving 
our community, can I please take this 
opportunity to emphasise the importance 
that we come together on a regular social 
basis and raise a glass to each other and 
the wonderful and heroic job that we do in 
serving our beach. 
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All of our traditional social days on our season’s calendar 
were well supported and a great time was had by all. 
Australia Day Big BBQ, Good Friday Fish BBQ, State Of 
Origin night and almost ruined by the invading Cane Toad 
Stretch. The annual Sportsman’s luncheon early in the year 
saw another full house sign go up and a great day was had 
by all.

In closing, I would like to specifically mention the following 
people for their unwavering support, help and assistance in 
executing the big days and running the bar and licence to 
meet all the requirements:

•	 Barry “Caretaker BAZ” Osborne. Put very simply, I would 
not be able to get through the year without Baz and his 
wonderful support and many, many hours of work both 
front and back of house. A lot of the hard work that Baz 
does goes unchecked and without notice. Baz is always 
there when the club needs him and he is a great support 
person for me. The ever-lovely Lesley is always on hand 
to help as well.

•	 Ken “Life member” Hudson and Tony “Head” Shaw were 
instrumental in organising the Oktoberfest committee 
and working through the enormity of the task and 
working with me in getting the job done. The logistics, 
preparation and execution of Oktoberfest is monumental 
in task and with these two gentlemen it was and absolute 
pleasure to work alongside.

•	 The BOM as always were there when needed and 
their support and guidance were greatly appreciated, 
especially Yvette Rutherford and Linda Perrin.

•	 Mick Fisher and the mighty Souths Juniors are a truly 
wonderful supporter of our great Club. Mick has this 
uncanny knack to make you feel at ease whenever asking 
for help or logistical assistance. Throughout the year, I 
reached out many times to Mick asking for help in many 
different shapes and forms and each and every time I 
received support and help in waves.

•	 Jack “STENT” Shaw from The Seals Club provides me 
and our great Club with magnificent logistical support 
and assistance whenever asked. The Seals Club through 
Jack is always there when needed often at minimal to no 
notice.

•	 Paul STRETCH Fownes OAM is nothing short of a truly 
magnificent inspiration. I am drawn back to the club each 
and every year because Stretch provides a volunteering 
environment where the entire teams work and efforts 
are appreciated and a magnificent team environment is 
instilled, encouraged and maintained. It is an absolute 
pleasure to volunteer under Stretch’s management and 
leadership and I look forward to doing the same in 
season 2018/19.

If I have left your name out it was not deliberate and by 
bringing this to my attention next time you see me behind 
the bar it will be a pleasure to buy you a drink (on Stretch’s 
account of course).

Looking forward to raising a glass with you in season 
2018/19.

Your Friendly Licensee

GUS TAYLOR
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During the year and in order to continue club improvements 
the committee focused on several projects and sourcing 
of funding for those projects. The completed project this 
year was the security shutter project which allowed for the 
installation and protection against harsh weather conditions 
for the Horizons room, replacement of ageing and heavy 
shutters in the patrol storage room, boat shed and nipper 
room and is already seeing a more safe and pleasurable 
experience for users. I would like to thank Michael Daley MP 
who supported this project through the Community Building 
Partnership.

Members also appreciated the significant improvement to 
our external PA system which allows nippers and families 
to hear the weekly instructions from club officials along with 
high quality music for those throwing a blanket on the ground 
whilst having a refreshment on the grass.

The other ongoing project and reported on elsewhere in 
this report is the Memorabilia Project which will provide a 
modern overview of our club history and should some to 
come to fruition next season.

I would like to take this opportunity of thanking Ken Hudson, 
Caretakers Barry and Leslie that do so much to keep 
the place in tip top working order. I don’t think members 

appreciate the extent of cleaning that goes on weekly to 
keep the club in a presentable state. I remind members, in 
particular patrol and IRB members that we are not permitted 
to deposit sand on the paving (car park side of the club) as it 
presents a slip hazard for those walking around the club plus 
has council cleaning after us. Taps have been installed near 
the patrol tower to allow for washing of IRBs and Jet Skis.

Finally, I am excited to announce we are seeking a line of 
funding for; 

•	 improvements to our toilets on the middle floor with 
creation of female toilets and full renovation of the mens 
shower room toilet and installation of a disabled toilet. 

Lets see how we go, but be assured we are committed to 
providing the best possible club for members enjoyment and 
a base for our lifesaving activities.

PAUL ‘STRETCH’ FOWNES OAM

Building Coordinator 

BUILDING CO-ORDINATORS REPORT

Our club house represents stability, 
certainty and is the one consistency 
year in and year out that deserves and 
needs our constant attention and respect. 
Once again, our club house continued to 
provide for the diverse range of activities 
that it encounters each year whether 
it be accommodating local schools, 
Council groups, NSW Police or a range 
of government agencies, local events, 
training or just a Sunday social for 
members and our many friends. 
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DIRECTOR OF LIFESAVING REPORT 

What another great year for our lifesaving 
services.  Our beach continues to see 
more or more visits and our members keep 
evolving to meet this increasing demand.  

As you will see from our education report the team has been 
hard at work this year training new lifesavers and upskilling 
the current member base with a huge spike in numbers.   
Mike and his team have trained 40 new bronzes over the 
year up from 29 the year before.  This injection of new 
members is critical in maintaining a healthy workload across 
all our members.   

On the beach we had a few large swell weeks at the start 
of season change the beach for what ended up being the 
lowest rescue numbers in the year for well over a decade.  
This was due to the increase in preventive actions by our 
members that were up over 30%.  The other main factor was 
a large sand bank that was created with the large swells.  
This bank formed a safe place for swimmers for most the 
season with very low rip activity.    Even our south rip wasn’t 
running as hot as normal all contributing to our lower than 
average rescue stats.    

Outside patrol hours we have had 2 great examples that our 
training and service that we provide to the community doesn’t 
end on the weekend.  Shane White and Brett Milsop both 
were involved in after hour’s rescues that from all accounts 
prevented a tragedy.   

Our members preform a number of external water safety 
activities throughout the year.  We provided over 60 
members to 3 ocean swims around Sydney. We also did 
our first patrol weekend at Garie SLSC to support the club 
with its patrol requirements and expose our members to 
other beaches and patrolling methods.   We are hoping this 
weekend at Garie will be an ongoing part of our lifesaving 
calendar 

This year branch along with our Lifesaving Committee 
relocated the branch jet ski (RWC) but to its original home 
at South Maroubra.   It has been over 10 years since it 
has been housed at our club.  To help support this branch 
service our club also put forward 5 new RWC drivers this 
year.  Many of which were our more experienced lifesavers 
looking for the next challenge.  Our location and depth of 
highly skilled motor craft operators makes South Maroubra a 
great fit.  

This year I had the privilege of sharing the skill and 
knowledge that I have learnt at South Maroubra with young 
lifesavers from clubs around NSW.  This group then travelled 
to New Zealand on a lifesaving exchange where we shared 
techniques and different challenges clubs/lifesavers face.  
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This was a great experience and even after 20 years on the 
beach I learnt a lot and came back even more proud of our 
club and members than when I left.  

At the start of this year with the generosity of Site Pizza 
Bar the Lifesaving Committee introduced a monthly internal 
recognition program for a patrolling members.  The Patrol 
member of the month award gave our members a change to 
recognise their peers for outstanding service.  

The program was a great success and the awardees were: 

•	 October: Patrol Member of the Month: Brad Ellison - 
Patrol 4

•	 October: Patrol Captain of the Month: John Counter - 
Patrol 1

•	 November: Patrol Member of the Month: Tyler Davis - 
Patrol 14

•	 November: Patrol Member of the Month: Darren 
Saunders - Patrol 13

•	 January: Patrol Member of the Month: Joao Jorges - 
Patrol 10

•	 January: Patrol Member of the Month: Jon Rhoades - 
Patrol 6

•	 Febuary: Patrol Member of the Month: Brett Milsop - 
Patrol 12

•	 Febuary: Patrol Captain of the Month: Carl Briscoe - 
Patrol AR1

•	 March: Patrol Member of the Month: Ashleigh Wallis-
Breaden - Patrol 7

•	 March: Patrol Member of the Month: Shane White - 
Patrol AR3

•	 April: Patrol Member of the Month: Hugo Defina-
Sperando - Patrol 10

•	 April: Patrol Member of the Month: Sean Lewis - 
Patrol 10

Lastly I would like to make some thanks, firstly to Ronny Krite 
the Assistant Director of Lifesaving.  I have spent a lot of 
time this year doing external lifesaving projects and Ronny 
has been there to cover me and much more.   Our Patrol 
Captains and Lifesaving Committee members for the hard 
work and leadership they provide for their teams, to all our 
lifesavers well done on another year of no lives lost.  

Our services could not be provided without the continues 
support from our sponsors. Big thanks to Souths Juniors, 
Randwick Club, Caltex, Maroubra Seals and Randwick City 
Council. 

Yours in Lifesaving

DAMIEN WOODS
Director of Lifesaving Services  

LIFESAVING
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PATROL STATISTICS

Swimmers
12,778

Craft
11,841

On Beach
36,304

Total Beach Attendance – 60,923

Rescue Board
28

Rescue  
Tube
39

IRB
30

No Gear  
3

Total Rescues – 101

RWVC  
1

NUMBER OF RESCUES

Minor Marine Stings
470

Major Marine Stings
7

Minor Cuts/Abrasions
50

Other
15

Major Wounds
7

Total First Aid – 556

Fractures/Dislocation
4

Spinal
3

FIRST AID

BEACH ATTENDANCE

Preventions
3137

Searches
4

Shark Alarm
1

Total Preventative Actions – 3153

Lost Children
11

PREVENTATIVE ACTIONS
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Support Patrol
Stephen Boyd
Adam Daly

01

Kevin Quinn Patrol Team
Rene Prochnow
John Counter – Patrol Captain
Ben Newell
Owen Skjeime

03

 John Ludlow Patrol Team
Scott Hobday
Laurie Golsby
Austin Wem – Patrol Captain
William Shaddock
Alexander Shaddock

04 

Ken Arthur Patrol Team 
Hunter Perry
Kirsten Newrick
Tali Mezei
Emma Perrin
Nicole Krite – Patrol Captain
Darren Tannock

05 

Rick McKeon Patrol Team 
Shane Hillard
Alex Tomkins
Emma Walsh
Mitchell Dugdale
Jay Shelley – Patrol Captain

06 

Bob Byrne Patrol Team 
Jake Hannigan
Don Smith – Patrol Captain
Jonathan Rhoades
Josh Barr

07 

Alan Morris Patrol Team 
Ashleigh Breaden
Dylan Sullivan
Richard Sullivan
Rachel Pelikan
Ronald Krite – Patrol Captain
Andrew Newrick
Kristy Smith

08 

Peter Dino Steenson Patrol Team 
Kelly Nichols – Patrol Captain
Michael Dillon
Toby Harrison
Ben Hall
Kat Peatey
Nicholas Pavlakis

09

John Jacques King Patrol Team 
Angelo Koukos
Rachelle McCarthy
Nicole Cooney – Patrol Captain
Sean Lewis

10 

Lionel Roser Patrol Team 
Joao Pedro De Jesus Jorge
Emily Barrett
Shannel Ryan-Last
Isabelle Heazlewood
Sarah Masri
Samarah Melia
Michael Fernandez – Patrol Captain

11 

John Marks Patrol Team 
Remi Defina-Sperando
Hugo Defina-Sperando
Codie Wem
Thomas King
Anita Comyn
Samantha Saunders
Luke Harris
Bronte Chadwick – Patrol Captain

12 

James Parker Patrol Team 
Louise Skjeime
Thelma Milsop
Simon Torsellini – Patrol Captain
Max Torsellini
Jake Torsellini
Archy Fowler
Vin Torsellini
Lisa Morgan
Brendon Harper

13 

John Park Patrol Team 
Darren Saunders
Matthew Engel
Damien Woods
Simon Smith – Patrol Captain

14 

Bernie Kelly Patrol Team 
Saraya O’Neil
Isabella Garay
William Spear
Caleb Neill
Gregory Shaw – Patrol Captain
Nicholas Guerrera
Kevin Fee
Ryan Lewis

AR1 

Brian Ferguson Patrol Team 
John Rooney
Jarrod Robertson
Michael Malone
Louise Ryan
Carl Briscoe – Patrol Captain
Fabienne Mace

AR2 

Paul Duffy Patrol Team 
Nicole Dugdale – Patrol Captain
Maxwell Murphy
Tohru Fukui
Anne Engel

AR3 

Phil Vanny Patrol Team 
David Dubois
Peter Murphy – Patrol Captain
David Haviland
Patricia Garvie
Kevin Underhill

SRC1 

Patrol Team 
Toby Goldschmidt
Lucy Cowlishaw
Cooper Stokes
Luc Christensen

SRC2 

Patrol Team 
Angelina Garay
Molly Whitely
Tom Kerboul Le Grignou
Bridget Crick

100% PATROL ATTENDANCE AWARDS
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EDUCATION REPORT

On top of the Bronze award, our trainers all played a hand 
in training a number of other senior awards such as IRB 
drivers and crew, ARTC (advanced reputation) and spinal 
awards. All up we put through around 50 extra senior 
awards compared to last year so a massive thanks to all our 
trainers for firstly making themselves available to train these 
courses, but also getting out there and recruiting members 
to up-skill. To add to this, a massive thank you has to go the 
Cathie Hall who took the lead on all of our proficiencies. 
She, along with a few other trainers, put through 333 
proficiencies in 4 sessions which is a huge effort. Every 
proficiency was handled extremely well and covered 
everything it needed to.  

This season also saw a healthy intake into courses that we 
haven’t had much interest in over the last few years. Through 
actively promoting these courses to members we are getting 
more interest which I believe will go a long way in ensuring 
we retain our members. One of these awards included the 
RWC (Jet Ski) award which has provided a new path for our 
IRB drivers to get out there and try something different. We 
also had two members complete their Gold Medallion which 
is a feat we haven’t seen in a fair while. Hopefully off the 
back of that we can build on those numbers in the future.  

The team also welcomed new trainee trainer Isabella Garay 
into the ranks. Bella came up through Nippers, completed 

her SRC and then her Bronze last season. From there, she 
discovered her desire to train and to pass on her knowledge 
to others. Bella assisted Nicole in training both our SRC 
squads, barely missing a session, on top of her patrol duties 
where she was on the beach pretty much every Sunday. 
Bella presents with a maturity well beyond her years and her 
confidence in delivering course content is second to none. As 
a result, Bella has earned herself the title of Rookie Trainer of 
the Year. Well done Bella! 

To the rest of our trainers, I say it every year on multiple 
occasions, however thank you so much for all your efforts in 
training our members. I personally think it is one of the more 
time-consuming gigs within our club with a number of late 
weeknights and early weekend mornings. To have the level 
of commitment you all do, on top of your regular patrolling 
duties and everyday lives is really something special. At 
the end of the day if we aren’t training new members and 
upskilling current ones, we eventually won’t have anyone to 
field a patrol, so again thank you all so much for all the work 
you do.  

Breakdown of training:

Cathie – Was involved in pretty much every award this 
season. Cathie trained 2 Bronze courses, 2 spinal courses, 
and an ARTC. She also ran all of our proficiencies, on top of 
working towards becoming a facilitator of SMAR and Beach 
m\Management and assessing a number of awards within 
the Branch! An absolute huge and inspiring effort from Cath. 

Jay – Another massive effort from Jay this season, training 
2 Bronze courses and 2 IRB courses. The way our training 
schedule is, means Jay starts training in August first up with 
IRB and doesn’t stop until the last Bronze course near the end 
of the season. It’s a large workload that spans from before 
the season even starts which is a massive credit to him. 

Another season gone, and once again 
what a busy one it was for our Education 
team. Our main focus this season was 
to boost our numbers in both the Bronze 
Medallion and other senior awards and 
I am proud to say that our small team 
of trainers achieved just that. We hit 
our target of 40 new Bronze Medallion 
members which is our highest number in 
the last 4-5 seasons. This is something we 
will look to grow even further in the season 
to come. A special mention has to go to 
Nicole Cooney who puts a lot of time and 
effort into advertising our Bronze courses 
which we are seeing bring in more people 
each year.  
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Ronny – Played a hand in training 2 Bronze courses and a 
couple IRB courses as well. Like Jay, Ronny had quite a long 
season training. 

Nixy – Nixy took the lead on our fitness training for both 
Bronze squads. These are an extra session we have 
introduced where the group can come down once a week 
and do a series of Run-Swim-Runs to help build their fitness 
and surf skills for their assessment. This has proven not only to 
help with the candidates’ fitness but has gone a long way in 
building stronger relationships between candidates which at 
the end of the day will aid in retention. On top of this Nixy 
also assisted training a Spinal course. 

Kelly – Kel had a big year this year planning a wedding! 
This didn’t stop her still pitching in with training, going on to 
train a Bronze squad at the beginning of the season as well 
as running a Spinal course and helping out with a couple of 
sessions with the last Bronze squad of the season.  

Nicole – As always, Nicole did an excellent job training our 
younger SRC candidates. It’s not the easiest job in the world 
at times but Nicole always puts in a huge effort bringing 

through quality young lifesavers. She does this on top of a 
number of other roles she holds within the club, all of which 
are extremely time consuming. To still put in time to train 
squads is a massive effort and a big credit to her. 

Bella – was outstanding in her first season as a Rookie 
trainer, helping Nicole train 2 SRC squads this season on her 
way to earning the Rookie Trainer of the Year! 

Darren – was away for work a lot this season however still 
helped where he could, particularly with the fitness training. 

Finally, a big thank you to our assessors who give up their 
time assessing other clubs within the Branch. John R, John C, 
Vince, Robbo and Cath. Your dedication not only to your 
Club but to the Branch as well is a massive credit to you all 
so thank you. 

Until next season. 

MICHAEL FERNANDEZ
Education Coordinator  
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SOUTH MAROUBRA AWARDS 2017/18

30 Year Long  
Service Award 
Terence Dunbar
Errol Goldberg
Horst Menzel

10 Year National Patrol 
Service Award 
Bronte Chadwick
Michael Fernandez
Ronald Krite

5 Year National Patrol 
Service Award 
Melanie Abbott
Nicole Cooney
Norbert Dommel
Scott Hobday
Thomas King
Nicholas Pavlakis
Jay Shelley
Austin Wem

First Aid [AID] 
Bradley Ellison
Luke Harris
Daniel Kerry
Thomas King
Nicole Krite
Rachelle McCarthy
Kirsten Newrick
Linda Perrin
Jonathan Rhoades
William Shaddock
Jay Shelley
Lasz Szabo
Darren Tannock
Joshua Taylor
Simon Torsellini
Quinta Turton

Junior Activities Age 
Manager - Online Theory 
Lauren McLean

Junior Activities Age 
Manager Course 
Anita Comyn
John Crewe
Nicky Crewe
Brett Dalley
David Dubois
Andrew Ellem
Craig Gibson
David Golding
Nathan Hoolahan
Georgie Israel
Timothy Jeffries
Jonathon Mattock
Louise McDonald
Joshua Palmer
Anna Pockley
Alain Rives

Cate Smith
Gavin Stevens
Renee Thomlinson
Agustina Torales
Paul Watson
Daniela Ziino-Rodriguez

National Medal 
Phil Dutton
Damien Woods

Silver Medallion Advanced 
First Aid [AID] 
Nicole Krite
Ronald Krite
Darren Tannock

SS - ASC Community 
Coaching General 
Principles 
Maxwell Murphy
Andrew Newrick
Jason Griffiths

SS - Core Official Online 
Theory Modules  
Jason Griffiths
Quinta Turton

SS - Development Coach 
Beach 
Andrew Newrick

SS - Senior Official  
Ken Hudson

SS - Technical Official 
Finish Judge/ Time Keeper/ 
Recorder 
Jason Griffiths
Noreen Madden
Renae McNamara
Brett Sheridan
Mary Jayne Tier

SS - Technical Official 
Marshall/Check-Marshall 
Jason Griffiths
Noreen Madden
Renae McNamara
Brett Sheridan
Mary Jayne Tier

SS - Technical Official 
Starter/Check-Starter 
Jason Griffiths
Noreen Madden
Renae McNamara
Brett Sheridan
Mary Jayne Tier

CLUB TRAINERS AND ASSESSORS

Endorsed Trainers

Nicole Cooney 	 BM, Spinal
John Counter 	 BM, Spinal
Michael Fernandez 	 ART [AID], BM, IRB
Isabella Garay	 SRC
Catherine Hall 	 ART [AID], BM, Spinal
Vince Johnson 	 ART [AID], BM, Spinal
Nixy Krite 	 BM, Spinal
Ronald Krite 	 BM, IRB
Kelly Fernandez 	 ART [AID], BM, Spinal
Jarrod Robertson 	 Training Officer ORB
Raymond Robinson 	 BM
John Rooney 	 BM
Jay Shelley 	 BM, IRB
Paul Stewart 	 BM
Darren Tannock 	 BM
Simon Torsellini	 BM, IRB

Endorsed Assessors
John Counter 	 BM
Michael Fernandez 	 BM, IRB
Catherine Hall 	 ART [AID], BM, Spinal
Vince Johnson 	 ART [AID], BM, Spinal
Raymond Robinson 	 BM, Spinal
John Rooney 	 BM
Simon Torsellini 	 IRB 
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Hugo Defina-Sperando
Jk Evans
georgia Gionis
Madeleine Hardy
Sean Lewis
Makayla Manu
Tali Mezei
Liam Mungovan
Zoila Newell
Caprice Stokes
Luke Zalatel
Charlie Farr-Jones
Vin Torsellini
Chloe Davis
Lucas Leondaris
Paula Schubach

Bronze Medallion
Damien Alexiou
Cheryl Christensen
Joao Pedro De Jesus Jorge
Anne De Palacio
Thomas Denigan
Byron Colin Edwards
Toby Harrison
Jonathon Rhoades
Tony Jenkin
Daniel Kerry 
Zachary King
Colin Marshall
Brett Milsop
Kirsten Newrick
Charlie Page
Kat Peatey
Andrew Rogan
Samantha Saunders

Luke Smith
Melodie Wakim
Charli Krite
Maureen Bolawaqatabu
Ricky Campbell
Luc Christensen
Tayla Curry
Johan de Bry
Craig Gibson
Toby Goldschmidt
Melissa Hughes
Shaun Longbottom
Sara Marta
Eve Mitchell-James
Janice Pereira
Jennie Smith
Cooper Stokes
Andrew Thompson
Jake Torsellini
Stella Ward
Samantha Cook
Talina Cruz

Gold Medallion
Jay Shelley
Darren Tannock

Advanced Resusitation 
(AID) 
Ashleigh Breaden
Johna de Bry
Joao Pedro De Jesus Jorge
Janice Pereira
Jonathan Rhoades
Lasz Szabo
Andrew Thompson

Spinal Management
Anita Comyn
Isabella Garay
Marcelo Garay
Luke Harris
Rachel Pelikan
William Shaddock
Uri Teitler
Johan de Bry
Joao Pedro De Jesus Jorge
Janice Pereira
Andrew Thompson

IRB Crew
Ashleigh Breaden
Remi Defina-Sperando
Jake Edwards
Isabella Garay
Saraya O’Neil
Joao Pedro De Jesus Jorge
Byron Colin Edwards
Toby Harrison
Rtony Jenkin
Zachary King
Jonathan Rhoades

Silver Medallion IRB Driver
Nicholas Guerrera
Scott Hobday
Nicole Krite
Kristy Smith
William Spear
Lasz Szabo
Andrew Wem
Isabelle Heazlewood
Shannel Ryan-Last

Silver Medallion Beach 
Management
Kristy Smith
Laurie Golsby
William Shaddock
Austin Wem
Lasz Szabo

Silver Medallion Aquatic 
Rescue
Catherine Hall
Caleb Neill
Greg Turton

ORB Crew
Darren Tannock

RWC Operator
Thomas King
Ronald Krite
Nicholas Pavlakis
Louise Skjeime
Owen Skjeime

Pain Management
Nicole Krite

Training Officer Spinal
Nicole Cooney

ATV Induction
Ryan Lewis

Cert IV T & A
Catherine Hall

CLUB TRAINERS AND ASSESSORS
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DIRECTOR OF YOUTH REPORT 

Five seasons ago, I was elected as your 
Director, what an amazing experience 
it has been. My main objective was to 
develop our section and for our nipper 
program to be best one in our branch and 
Sydney. As I write my last Annual Report 
as your director, I look back and can 
confidently say that I have achieved this 
objective. 

The foundations of our junior section are strong; and with the 
right members, their commitment and passion, I’m certain the 
section will continue to evolve to be stronger and stronger. 

I’m proud to be part of a team that professionally delivers a 
well-structured, inclusive and family oriented nipper program.

The 2017-2018 season was another successful one where 
our young lifesavers at training had an amazing time learning 
and developing the skills to become much needed lifesavers 
for our community. As in previous seasons, we highly 
focused on member engagement, member participation, 
retention and looking at ways how to improve even more our 
customer’s experience.

The professionalism, commitment and knowledge of our 
volunteers has been the key to the success of our program.

We pride our program in being focused on inclusivity and 

education whilst maintaining a well balance approach 
to competition and normal nipper activities, all done and 
delivered through a well structure program in a family 
focused and fun environment. 

This season we reached a massive milestone, and that 
was reaching 700 nippers at our beach, disappointingly, 
it meant that we could not accept more registrations as we 
were in full capacity. We commenced our season with a 
similar calendar as previous seasons. Again, this season we 
were blessed with favourable weather and water conditions 
allowing our young lifesavers at training to do more water 
activities.

We were honoured to be visited by one of our fans, young 
Archer Irwin. Archer has the chance to be a nipper for the 
day, and was also made an honorary nipper of our club. 
Archer had been following our nippers from the TV show 
filmed last year, which lead to his family asking whether 
we could get some memorabilia from the show, instead we 
invited Archer to spend the day with us where he was able 
to meet his TV stars. Archer was presented with the club’s full 
competition uniform, as well as his own nipper cap. After 
spending the afternoon with his new friends, Archer and his 
family joined the rest of the nipper family to an evening of 
music and fun at our Twilight disco. What a magnificent day 
we all had with Archer and his family. Thanks Archer and 
family for spending the day with us and allowing us to be 
part of Archer’s day, we loved every single minute of it.

We recognised our 100%+ attendance awards, introduced 
extra Twilight nipper days, hosted our annual Nipper Disco, 
hosted the inaugural U8s South Maroubra Challenge 
Carnival and held a number of BBQ activities throughout the 
season to finish off with the Annual Trivia night, indeed, we 
had a successful and rather busy season.

NIPPERS
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Congratulations and huge THANK YOU to our Junior 
Captains Angelina Garay and Oscar Ortolani, you both did 
our club and your family proud, making it to the finals of the 
Junior Lifesaver competition and working tirelessly throughout 
the season supporting me and the nipper community. Your 
commitment, approach and willingness to be there to support 
and being an exemplary role model did not go unnoticed, 
best wishes in your senior path at our club.

U6s, U7s and U8s group represented over 50% of our junior 
member base, with 130+ new future lifesavers to our U6s 
groups led by our U6s/U7s coordinator Lauren McLean and 
managed by Philippa Stanley, Victoria Gibbons and Tony 
Jenkin, all supported by our amazing beach crew team, a 
job well done by all!

We also sadly farewelled our U14s Young Lifesavers as 
they’ve graduated from the program. I wish them the very 
best in the senior ranks, and I thank Carlo Ortolani and his 
team for your support and work over the many years you 
worked with these nippers.

Our U8s made the move to the big side’ of the ‘beach, the 
transition was seamless. Both groups were managed by 
Luke Ellis, Pat Capaan, Ben Liquette and Renae McNamara, 
and of course, supported by our amazing Beach Crew. 
Thanks for your commitment and support. Kids participated 
and enjoyed thoroughly their nipper Sundays and the new 
challenges. A large number successfully represented South 
Maroubra SLSC at several carnivals and Branch, making 
their parents and the club very proud.

To my U9s to U13s Age Managers, thank you for your 
continuous support and commitment. 

Our team of photographers grew with the arrival of Helen 
Di Domenico to complement Claire McCabe, both did 
an amazing job roaming our beach in the background 
capturing the activities our young lifesavers in action. Thanks 
so much ladies.

To past junior members that volunteered their time to mentor 
and share your knowledge with our nippers, I thank you. We 
appreciate your commitment and time, our nippers thoroughly 
enjoy having you around.

In order to develop great lifesavers and assets to the 
community, we invest a lot of resources focussing on 
lifesaving skills at the beach and Education and development 
of our young members and family members. During the past 
season, we delivered a number of training courses, with a 
number of our nippers attending and representing our club at 
the Junior Development camps.

EDUCATION SUMMARY

•	 594 achieved their age appropriate Surf-Education 
awards

•	 16 U13s/U14’s achieved their SRCs and are actively 
patrolling our beach

•	 30 Parents achieved their Age Managers award

•	 A large number of parents achieved their BMs, all doing 
active patrols and water safety

•	 Several parents achieved their Level 1 Official award

•	 Several parents achieved their Silver Medallion Basic 
Beach Management award

•	 Several parents achieved their Spinal Management 
Award

•	 Several parents also achieved their IRB certificates 
(Crewman/Driver)

A number of our future young leaders from the U11s and 
U13s represented our club at the Sydney Branch Nipper 
Development camps. They learnt and shared valuable 
leadership skills whilst furthering their lifesaving skills, all 
delivered in a well organised program. 

COMPETITION/TRAINING

This Season’s nipper training program was well structured, 
inclusive, and thorough, providing a more flexible approach, 
allowing working parents/carers to take advantage of the 
program for their children. With the support of our board 
coaches, we started board training in early August, and it 
was a huge success.

We had big numbers in water training attendance; we had 
a large number of children attending Surf swimming as well 

DIRECTOR OF YOUTH REPORT (CONTINUED)
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as Board training, this reflected on the improved skills and 
confidence that our nippers showed at normal nipper days, 
as well as competitions.

Sand training was also developed further, providing again a 
well-structured and flexible program, we saw our attendance 
soar, what a great achievement.

To our Junior Head Coach and Competition Manager 
(Col Marshall) and coaches (Andy Newrick, Max Murphy, 
Darren McLean and Marty Kiernan) I thank you for your 
guidance, support and encouragement. Your knowledge 
and commitment is appreciated. Please remember that 
all of our coaches are volunteers and give us their time to 
train our nippers, it is rewarding to see how these young 
athletes develop to become great lifesavers. Thanks for your 
commitment and support.

Our nipper represented our club at several events during the 
season all over Sydney, Northern and Illawarra Branches, 
they wore and represented our colours with pride, enthusiasm 
and competed in a fair and friendly manner.

Sydney Branch was hosted by Maroubra SLSC for the third 
year in a row. With a large contingency of competitors, we 
managed to secure great results in water and sand. Well 
done to all nippers that attended.

Second year at Swansea-Blacksmith for the State 
Championships. We had a large contingency of 100+ 
representing South Maroubra, the team participated and 
competed in friendly and fair manner, placing 10th in the 
State. Fifth year in a row that South Maroubra Nippers 
has placed in the top 10s at State Level, an amazing 
achievement. Fantastic work of the management team and 
coaches and a magnificent effort by our athletes… 

Well done!

And once again, Deanne Goldschmidt outdid herself by 
designing a unique and beautiful uniform for our team, 
we were the envy of many clubs at State, Thanks so much 
Deanne.

AWARDS/PRESENTATIONS 

Presentation days were conducted as per our season 
calendar; our young U6s, U7s and U8s were presented with 
their medals, certificates and awards. It was followed several 
weeks later by the presentation to the rest of the nipper 
group, the day was filled with excitement and fun, and it was 
great to present the well-deserved awards, certificates and 
medals.

Congratulations to the nippers that were awarded with their 
100%, 200%, 300%+ attendance trophies, a well-deserved 
award and recognition to the nippers and families for such 
commitment, and of course, congratulations to the recipients 
of the Coaches and Age Manager’s awards.

This year we introduced our Junior Club Championships 
replacing the old Point scoring system, Congratulations to all 
nippers that received medals at the Championships and also 
Congrats to our Club Champions in your Age Group. The 
Bruce Rutherford Memorial Award for the most outstanding 
surf female nipper competitor of the season was awarded to 
Maddison Neill, a well-deserved recipient, Congratulations 
Maddison.

The Surf lifesaving movement is delivered and managed by 
volunteers, our club is run and managed by a great bunch 
of volunteers that share the same vision and commitment to 
make our club great.
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To all the volunteers that gave up your time and efforts to 
supports us during the season and ensure the program would 
be delivered successfully, a massive thank you!

The nipper executive committee did an amazing job and 
Greg Shaw and his Patrol 14, thanks for supporting us 
during the season.

The dedication of the Club training officers is to be 
commended in helping our future lifesavers and parents 
learn more about the surf, beach conditions and valuable 
lifesaving skills. Thanks to the Club’s education team led 
by Mike Fernandez, I’d like to also express my gratitude to 
Nicole Cooney for the magnificent work she does with our 
SRCs, supported by our young trainer Isabella Garay, also 
big thanks to Kelly Fernandez for all the work you put in 
every year to support our Nippers.

It is important to recognise the people involved in delivering 
the program and the enormous amount of work that is 
put in to deliver it successfully, as soon as the season 
finishes preparation and planning for the following season 
commences. The commitment and efforts of these volunteers 
is amazing and most of the time will go unnoticed.

To my amazing Beach Crew team, the support you provide 
to the Age Managers and Nippers is amazing. I thank you 
for your commitment, time, persistence and patience. The 
work and time you put in the development of our young 
lifesavers at training is invaluable.

Packing and unpacking the beach is a task that many of 
you are not familiar with and not an easy one, 7AM on a 
Sunday morning is a norm for our gear steward and support 
team followed by the pack up which is completed an hour 
or so after the last nippers have left the beach. I’d like to 
recognise and thank Paul Ryan, Damien Alexiou and Brett 
Milsop for your support and dedication.

Thank you to our officials that have supported our section 
over the years, I congratulate the parents/carers that 
achieved their Official awards and officiated during the 
season. 

Thanks to our nipper partners Sydney City Volkswagen, 
RAMS Sydney East Sydney, CSJ Seafood and Channel 9. 

Thanks to the club’s major sponsors – Maroubra Seals Club, 
The Juniors, Randwick City Council, Botany City Council & 
the NSW Government. To the local businesses that support 
our nipper program – namely Look Design, Mick Fisher and 
the many businesses that sponsored our U8s South Maroubra 
Challenge and our Trivia Night, I thank you.

To the volunteers that put their hand up to support us, whether 
on Sundays or at events, being Water Safety, BBQ duties 
and many other important tasks, I thank you.

To the nipper family and community, I hope that you enjoyed 
last season and are looking to season 2018/2019. I 
sincerely thank you for your support, efforts and commitment; 
you play an instrumental role in the success of our program.

To my family, I could not have done what I have achieved 
over the past 5 season without your unconditional support, 
love and patience. Thanks to you all for the support and 
encouragement you have and continuously give me.

In closing, I would like to thank my fellow Club Directors for 
your support and commitment; I extend my thanks to those 
within Sydney Branch for their ongoing support shown to 
our club, being supporting the Randwick Shield, our U8s 
Junior Carnival, at other carnivals, jet ski/IRB support or 
via administration in general. Thanks to the BJD and to the 
Sydney Branch BOSS for their commitment and support to the 
Branches EAP, Dev and HP squad activities.

It has been an honour to be your director and manage 
such a wonderful section, I am proud to be part of South 
Maroubra surf club and being able to contribute my bit to 
our community.

Go South Maroubra!!!

Warm regards,

MARCELO GARAY
Director of Youth Development 

DIRECTOR OF YOUTH REPORT (CONTINUED)
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100% Attendance year
Jessica Marshall
Emma Matheson
Lance Denigan
Ned Panilio
Emily Henville
Sierra Papps-Ingelmo
James Gibbons
Eleanor Lawrie
Zoe Veigel
Jessica Gibbons
Lexie Tait

200% Attendance year
Hayden Holford
Noah Teitler
Sarah Teitler
Angelina Garay

300% Attendance year
Zoe Robinson

400% Attendance year
Nica Thongsri
Freya Buckett

500% Attendance year
Vectis Buckett

Long Service Award
Angelina Garay
Oscar Ortolani
Caprice Stokes
Hugo Defina-Sperando
Maddison Neill
Charlie Farr-Jones

NIPPER 
ATTENDANCE 
AWARDS 

NIPPER COMMITTEE  
2017-2018

Executive Team

Marcelo Garay	 Director
Emma Ryan	 Apparel
Maria Garay	 Registrar
Uri Teitler	 Assistant Director
Paul Ryan	 Gear Steward
Nicole Cooney	 Education
Shannon Gray	 Fundraising
Colin Marshall	 Competition
Peter Kondilios	 Sponsorship

Age Managers

U6/U7s  
Coordinator	 Lauren McLean

U6s Boys	 Tony Jenkin

U6s Girls	 Phillipa Stanley 
	 Victoria Gibbons

U7s Boys	 Nik Hippmann

U7s Girls	 Pascal Giraud

U8s Boys	 Pat Capaan

U8s Girls	 Corrine Henville

U9s Boys	 Emma Ryan 

U9s Girls	 Thelma Vickers 
	 Fiona Deveraux 

U10s Boys	 Brendan McDonald 

U10s Girls	 Thelma Milsop 
	 Fiona Deveraux

U11s Boys	 Brett Milsop 
	 Damien Alexiou

U11s Girls	 Darren McLean 
	 Jason Griffith 
	 Georgie Israel

U12s Boys	 Adrian Jones

U12s Girls	 Steve Hafer

U13s Group	 Nathan Goldschmidt 

U14s Group	 Julia Foulkes 
	 Carlo Ortolani

Special Thanks to  
our Photographers

Clare McCabe
Helen DiDomenico
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JUNIOR SURF EDUCATION AWARDS 2017/18

Surf Play One  
(U6) 

Alcaraz, Luca
Allen, Kira
Ammon, Chloe_Jayne
Baker, Emily
Banfield, Arlo
Barrie, Ayrton
Bell-Parsons, Kiah
Bettschen, Max
Birks, Dalila
Bradley, Lucas
Bramham, Piper
Breen, Jakub
Briffa, Eva Jade
Briffa, Jazlyn
Buckett, Isis
Campbell, Grace
Capaan, Thomas
Capdevielle, Gabriel
Carter-Kelly, Henri
Cherry-Nguyen, Agnes
Clarke, Robert
Clayton, Ella
Coakley, Sasha
Colyer, Annabella
Conquest, Georgia
Cooke, Charlotte
Cooke, Taj
Crawford, Isla
Crewe, Scarlett
Cullen, Olivia
Dalley, Brock
Davis, Flynn
Day, Ziggy
Denigan, Kathleen
Di Domenico, Caitlyn
Dickson, Sean
Dunn, Maxwell
Elder, Charlize
Ellem, Abigail
Fabri, Charlotte
Fagundes, Thomas
Fitzgerald, Bailey
Folk, Archer
Forman, Raphael
Fraser, Indigo
Gardner, Banjo
Gardner, Chloe
Gibbons, Isabella
Gibson, Sierra
Gill, Madeleine
Glenn, Cooper
Grover, Darius

Hack, Oliver
Harrison, Oscar
Healey, Ty
Helikarova, Natalie
Henville, Mitchell
Holford, Billy
Hunter, Benjamin
Hunter, Jack
Jacotine, Oscar
James, Emily
Jasczyk, Maggie
Jeffries, Emily
Kanagaratnam, Maya
Katrib, Jake
Kendall, Drew
Knibbs, Liam
Kratovil, Finn
Leeson, Remy
Logiacco, Grace
Lowlett-Richards, Kai
Mackenzie, Gerard
Maley, Sophie
Manning, Logan
Mattock, Molly
Mayne, Rylan
McAllister, Basil
McDonald, Hugh
McMullan, Arran
Millward, Tenison
Mordue, Louie
Page, George
Palmer, Saoirse
Patoka, Joshua
Peters, Mason
Phair-Tello, Olivia
Phayungporn, 
Nachapol
Pouzet, Tahlia
Pritchard, Archie
Quince, Fin
Quince, Jack
Ranieri, Rocky
Roberts, Jayden
Robilliard, Jess
Rodriguez, Ivy
Roux, Juliette
Rowland, Katy
Russell, Kalani
Shelley, Kayla
Simpkins, Tate
Smiljan, Catherine
Spencer, Valentine
Sprague, Ava
Stevens, Ava

Sudries-Leroy, Matteo
Summerhayes, Luka
Thomson, Dylan
Thomson, Hamish
Trabuio, Harry
Tucker, Cole
Ung, Amelie
Wakim, Lachlan
Watson, Jack
West, Finn
Wheeler, Ellen
White, Penelope
Young, Mia
Savva, Penelope

Surf Play Two  
(U7) 

Alexiou, Amelia
Alliaume, Bastien
Ammon, Annabelle
Andersen-Allen, Felix
Argy, Apollo
Axiom, Max
Barahona, Cruz
Beetson, Billy
Bezjak, Alana Jo
Booth, Charles
Butler-Bennett, James
Byrne, Benjamin
Calder, Grace
Carpenter, Aidan
Cleverley, Sofia
Clydesdale, Zack
Costa, Timothy
de Bry, Oliver
Derham, Alexandra
Dunkley, Sofia
Effeney, Matilda
Elfis, Emmanuelle
Elliott, Poppy
Evans, Tyler
Ferguson, Ben
Field, Eden
Galea, Peejay
Giraud, Emmeline
Glass, Stella
Gralton, Alexandra
Griffiths, Lauren
Hall, Amelia
Hargreaves, Finn
Harmer, Alexandria
Hickman, Jack
Hippmann, Ada
Hippmann, Matthias

Holdaway, Bailey
Hudson, Francesca
Hunter, Kurt
Katrib, Tiana
King, Jenna
Knight, Sienna
Kogias, Savannah
Laird, Isabel
Leal, Inez
Leighton, River
Leith, Kikki
Levett, Elyse
Lichaa, Isaac
Lim, Kobe
Litherland, Lachlan
Lucey, Lola
Lucey, Olivia
Lynch, Richard
Madden, Liam
Mansukh, Louis
Masoni, Gaetan
Massey, Lucas
Matheson, Emma
Mayer, Emily
McCue, Aila
McGreevy, Sofia
McMahon, Oscar
Melville, Luke
Metzger, Madeleine
Michael, Theo
Mitchell, Charli
Mitchell, Lily
Moorhouse, Joe
Morgan, Charlyse
Morrison, Evelyn
Morrow, Mila
Morton, Chloe
Newrick, Jayden
Nicoletti, Thomas
Nott, Luca
O’Keeffe, Grace
Olive, Scarlett
Oosting, Remi
O’Sullivan, Luke
Palmer, Harvey
Panlilio, Tobias
Parrab, Zachary
Peatey, Riley
Pelikan, Isaac
Perez, Ethan
Perry, Fiona
Prendergast, Jay
Presse, Camille
Pribadi, Marisa

Rana, Emily
Rogan, Elora
Rogan, Luisa
Rowland, Molly
Samuels, Bailee
Sharp, Thomas
Sheridan, Jade
Thapa, Rohan
Trudinger, Ariadne
Turton, Angus
Walton, Sienna
Welter, Kevin
Willmot, Charlie
Wiseman, Ignatius
Witare, Vincenzo
Wixted, Grace
Yip, Ryan
Zhang, Hilary

Surf Aware One 
(U8) 

Abraham, Lola
Assassa, Ayden
Bargon, Elliot
Barr Berrocal, 
Anastasia
Bouhoutsos, Zahra
Bradley, Neil
Bramham, Ryan
Branagan, Dylan
Brandtman, Sophie
Briffa, Ashton
Budin, Joe
Bui, Abby
Campos Pascall, 
Natalia
Capaan, Joshua
Chen-Smith, Jack
Chopra, Tisya
Cleaves, Georgia
Clydesdale, Taliyah
Coakley, Benjamin
Colyer, Alexander
Crewe, Dylan
Crick, Phoebe
De Weever, Pyper
Dommel, Julianna
Ellis, Piper
Evans, Oscar
Francis, Edward
Gibson, Thandie
Gil, Amelia
Gill, Molly
Goulding, Archie

Grover, Kingsley
Hack, Brodie
Halpin, Ellie
Hamilton, Charlie
Harding, Aaron
Hennessy, Nikolai
Hurtado, Dominic
Huve, Odin
Johnson, Robert
Kapellas, Mia
Kerry, Isaac
Killorn, Archie
Lennon, Oscar
Lescop, Hugo
Lichaa, Matthew
Liquete, Leo
Lloyd, Liam
Lloyd, Poppy
Lloyd-Jones, Owen
Lo Nero, Justin
Logiacco, Alexander
Mackrill, Sonny
Marcus, Rafael
Marshall, Jessica
Mason, Tyler
Masri, Emily
Matthews, Isabella
Mattock, Clementine
Maurice, Chloe
Maxwell, Tom
Mayne, Marli
McAllister, Dexter
McCabe, Ffyon
McDonald, Cameron
McGowan, Finn
McInness, Jade
McNamara, Ryan
Meindl, Connor
Melia, Tayte
Mitchell, Remy
Mitsios, Maxim
Morrissey, Eabha
Neofytou, Alexia
Nevin, Lola
O’Keeffe, Lila
Papadopoulos, Kostan
Patoka, Matilda
Phair-Tello, Alicia
Potter, Charlee
Pounder, Jeremy
Pouzet, Xavier
Pribadi, Jordan
Prichard, Zavier
Prochnow, Sophie
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Rhoades, Bryce
Rimondi, Poppy
Robilliard, Sammy
Robinson, Zoe
Rodriguez, Xavier
Rojas, Xavier
Russell, Jone
Ryan-Last, Cobi
Saunders, Clementine
Shatar, Archie
Smith, Brock
Smith, Isaac
Smith, Zoe
Smith, Zoe
Sparrowhawk, Jackson
Spencer, Charlotte
Sullivan, Blake
Thomas, Byron
Thong-Uam, Pazzy
Touzard, Maxime
Trabuio, Joshua
Travis, Jenson
Tuffs, Max
Veigel, Maia
Waters, Kye
Watson, Georgia
Wolstenholme, Paul
Young, Nate

Surf Aware Two  
(U9) 

Anderson, Jake
Barahona, Cindy
Best, Finnian
Booth, Isaac
Breen, Zofia
Burton, Adam
Byrne, Nicholas
Carter, Lily
Chen-Smith, Ming
Christodoulou, Essie
Coelho, Neo
Collard, Maisie
Cooke, Cruz
Cooke, Harrison
Cooke, Kingston
Coulet, Aurelien
Curtis, Ben
Cuthbert, Sophie
Denigan, Lance

Di Blasio, Isabella
Dickson, Amy
Driscoll, Daniel
Elfis, Ariane
Elfis, Xanthe
Falvey, Oscar
Fine, Benji
Fittler, Piper
Fletcher, Grace
Gerber, Otto
Golding, Ruby
Hafer, Henry
Henville, Emily
Hickey, Zahlia
Holford, Hayden
Hoolahan, Tyla
Hughes, Carter
Israel, Syd
Ivashova, Lada
James, Madelyn
Kane, Cara
Kerr, Hannah
Khachan, Hannah
Knight, Beau
Koch, Cleo
Kondilios, Christopher
Laird, Olivia
Lane, Dylan
Law, Kingston
Leondaris, Zoe
Lloyd-Paul, Sebastian
MacPherson, Lila
Madden, Grace
Maurice, Lachlan
McGreevy, Connor
Mitchell, Jack
Mordue, Iris
Morgan, Tiahlee
Morrow, Daniel
Newell, James
Nicoletti, Billy
Niforas, Chloe
Nijam, Josie
Nolan, Ellie
Panlilio, Ned
Papps-Ingelmo, Sierra
Pawsey, Nathaniel
Peatey, Xavier
Reisenleiter, Charli
Renford, Aidan

Ricketson, Evie
Robbie, Samantha
Rouillard, Nathan
Ryan, Will
Samson, Taoko
Skuodas, Wanda
Tarau, Payton
Thomlinson, Evie
Thongsri, Nica
Tucker, Avalon
Westerman, Lola
Wheeler, Ruby

Surf Safe One  
(U10) 

Alexiou, Jasmine
Andersen-Allen, Juliette
Blackford, Sarah
Brandtman, Jack
Breaden, Luke
Buckett, Vectis
Burnham, Noah
Bush, Zoe
Capaan, Benjamin
Chumbley, Jake
Crewe, Harry
Crick, Zoe
Dommel, Genevieve
Dubois, William
Dworkin, Sam
Evans, Lola
Evans, Zac
Folk, Mackinley
Fotu-Moala, Dyzire
Fotu-Moala, Gorjez
Gibbons, James
Gibson, Rose
Glass, Isabelle
Goldberg, Lucas
Gralton, Lola
Hamilton, Holly
Harding, Dexter
Henville, Jessica
Hillard, Elena
Hippmann, Sena
Holdaway, Mia
Holland, Matilda
Houston, Kyle
Hudson, Ethan
Jones, Zac

Kiernan, Georgie
Lackey, Kian
Lawrie, Eleanor
Lee, Nicholas
Leighton, Sienna
Lennon, Samuel
Logiacco, Isabella
Lucey, Sophie
Lynch, Daniel
Mancuso, Mia
Marcus, Rachel
Mazor, Isla
McDonald, Allister
Mitchell, Scarlet
Morgan, Tommy
Newrick, Luke
Obaid, Olivia
O’Sullivan, Ursela
Parrab, Isabelle
Pelikan, Benjamin
Polihronas, Nicholas
Prendergast, Kari
Pribadi, Amy
Roberts, Sienna
Rowland, Maya
Saunders, Matilda
Sims, Adam
Smith, Charlize
Smith, Mia
Sperring, Zac
Talichet, Liv
Truran, Samantha
Veigel, Zoe
Wallington, Jack
Young, Taj

 Surf Safe Two  
(U11) 

Alexiou, Matthew
Argy, Alexa
Coulet, Victor
De Weever, Teoni
Di Blasio, Maximo
Donaldson, Tom
Ellis, Luana
Ellis, Tyler
Faures, Amaury
Fletcher, Ruby
Ford, Zane
Goldschmidt, Ashley

Griffiths, Alanna
Hammann, Emma
Hargreaves, Ava
Israel, Sienna
Ivashov, Feliks
Jreige, Leo
Kerry, Ebrel
Law, Vlad
Lawler, Maddison
Leith, Jagger
Mackenzie, Stirling
Manu, Keilani
Marshall, Jaiden
McKellar, Milla
McLean, Lillie
Milsop, Xavier
Mravec, Frederick
Mungovan, Riley
Murphy, Ben
Narkprasert, Punorn
Newell, Isabella
Pawsey, Elliot
Pedder, Frankie
Renford, Lily
Rhoades, Carson
Rimondi, Amelie
Ruse, Sarah
Ryder, Felix
Samson, Eugene
Schubach, Gina
Sete-Falemaka, Luini
Sheridan, Mila
Teitler, Noah
Thomlinson, Chloe
Thong-Uam, Pear
Tsimbler, Marcus
Turton, Finlay
Wallace, Kye
White, Charlie

Surf Smart One 
(U12) 

Buckett, Freya
Connon, Briena
Crossingham, Matthew
Dubois, Lucas
Farr-Jones, Tom
Garay, Elisa
Gibbons, Jessica
Gionis, Sophia

Gray, Ruby
Hafer, Sienna
Iredale, Zac
Jones, Kai
Leighton, Bailey
Leondaris, Gabriel
Meagher, Toby
Mintoff, Chloe
Morgan, Siennah
Mullins-Donoghoe, 
Harry
Ortolani, Siara
Patrick, Daniel
Polihronas, Alexander
Presse, Adrien
Reay, William
Ryan, Charlotte
Shaw, Peter
Skene, Jessie
Spella-Barberet, 
Romain
Stokes, Chanelle
Talichet, Lou-anne
Tucker, Nate

Surf Smart Two  
(13) 

Alexiou, Liliana
Astridge, Leo
Barber, Chelsea
Christensen, Benedict
De Weever, Rio
Fotu-Moala, Joiful
Goldschmidt, Ryan
Gray, Jackson
Healey, Hannah
Iredale, Zoe
Kessie, Malikye
Leith, Jarvis
Masri, Zena
Presse, Gustave
Reay, Madison
Robbie, Ryan
Samson, Micheal
Skene, Jamie
Tait, Alexandra
Teitler, Sarah
Young, Lucas



50

NIPPERS AWARDS 2017/18

AGE MANAGER’S 
ENCOURAGEMENT 
AWARDS 

COACHES 
ENCOURAGEMENT 
AWARDS 

U9s
Essie Christodoulou	
Toby Gough

U10s
Rose Gibson	
Jake Chumbley

U11s
Sienna Israel	
Leo Jreige

U12s
Siara Ortolani	
Adrien Presse

U13s
Madison Reay	
Lucas Leondaris

U14s
Georgia Gionis	
Alex Thompson

SPECIAL AWARDS

BRUCE RUTHERFORD MEMORIAL AWARD 	
Maddison Neill 

Junior Board
Cindy Barahona	
Aidan Renford

Senior Board
Lillie McLean	
Ben Christensen

Mals
Caprice Stokes	
Alex Thompson

Swim Junior
Isabella DiBlasio	
Frederick Mravec

Swim Senior
Hanna Healey	
William Reay

Sand Sprint
Scarlett Mitchell	
Hayden Holford

Sand Flags
Jack Brandtman	
Ruby Gray

CLUB JUNIOR 
CAPTAINS
Angelina Garay
Oscar Ortolani

CLUB JUNIOR 
CHAMPIONS 
2017-2018

U9s
Grace Madden	
Christopher Kondilios

U10s
Georgie Kiernan	
Luke Newrick

U11s
Sienna Israel	
Maximo Di Blasio

U12s
Elisa Garay	
William Reay

U13s
Lexie Tait	
Lucas Young

U14s
Charlie Farr-Jones	
Maddison Neill

SOUTH MAROUBRA NIPPERS RESULTS

State Medallists
Ben Christensen
Charlie White
Christopher Kondilios

Frederick Mravec
Jagger Leith
Jaiden Marshall
Leo Astridge
Lillie McLean

Lucas Young
Luke Newrick
Makayla Manu
Maximo DiBlasio
Payton Tarau

Ryan Goldschmidt
Sienna Israel
Syd Israel
Taoko Samson
Tom Farr-Jones



51

N
IP

P
E
R
S

CLUB CHAMPIONSHIPS RESULTS
Female U14

Swim
Maddison Neill
Caprice Stokes
Angelina Garay

Board
Maddison Neill
Caprice Stokes

Sprint
Maddison Neill
Molly Whitely
Caprice Stokes

Flags
Maddison Neill
Caprice Stokes
Angelina Garay

Male U14

Swim
Alex Thompson
Charlie Farr-Jones
Oscar Ortolani

Board
Charlie Farr-Jones
Alex Thompson
Oscar Ortolani

Sprint
Charlie Farr-Jones
Oscar Ortolani
Alex Thompson

Flags
Oscar Ortolani
Alex Thompson
Charlie Farr-Jones

Female U13

Swim
Dimitrias Gionis
Lexie Tait
Madison Reay

Board
Lexie Tait
Sarah Teitler
Madison Reay

Sprint
Lexie Tait
Madison Reay
Dimitrias Gionis

Flags
Lexie Tait
Madison Reay
Zena Masri

Male U13

Swim
Lucas Young
Ben Christensen
Michael Samson

Board
Lucas Young
Ben Christensen

Sprint
Lucas Young
Lucas Lenodaris
Ben Christensen

Flags
Lucas Lenodaris
Michael Samson
Jarvis Leith

Female U12

Swim
Chanelle Stokes
Siara Ortolani
Elisa Garay

Board
Elisa Garay
Chanelle Stokes
Siara Ortolani

Sprint
Elisa Garay
Ruby Gray
Siara Ortolani

Flags
Ruby Gray
Elisa Garay
Siara Ortolani

Male U12

Swim
William Reay
Zac Iredale
Tom Farr-Jones

Board
William Reay
Zac Iredale
Tom Farr-Jones

Sprint
Romain Spella-Barberet
Tom Farr-Jones
William Reay

Flags
Tom Farr-Jones
William Reay
Romain Spella-Barberet

Female U11

Swim
Sienna Israel
Milla McKellar
Mila Sheridan

Board
Sienna Israel
Ashley Goldschmidt
Lillie McLean

Sprint
Keilani Manu
Sarah Ruse
Alannah Griffiths

Flags
Keilani Manu
Sienna Israel
Lillie McLean

Male U11

Swim
Jaiden Marshall
Charlie White
Frederick Mravec

Board
Jaiden Marshall
Maximo Di Blasio
Charlie White

Sprint
Jagger Leith
Maximo Di Blasio
Frankie Pedder

Flags
Jagger Leith
Maximo Di Blasio
Frankie Pedder

Female U10

Swim
Genevieve Dommel
Georgie Kiernan
Juliette Andersen-Allen

Board
Georgie Kiernan
Genevieve Dommel
Scarlett Mitchell

Sprint
Scarlett Mitchell
Georgie Kiernan
Zoe Crick

Flags
Zoe Crick
Scarlett Mitchell
Amy Pribadi

Male U10

Swim
Harry Crewe
Taj Young
Luke Breaden

Board
Harry Crewe
Vectis Buckett
Luke Breaden

Sprint
Luke Newrick
Jack Brandtman
Luke Breaden

Flags
Luke Newrick
Jack Brandtman
Mackinley Folk

Female U9

Swim
Tyler Hoolahan
Lila Macpherson

Board
Cindy Barahona
Grace Madden

Sprint
Charlie Reisenleiter
Grace Madden
Cindy Barahona

Flags
Grace Madden
Avalon Tucker
Iris Mordue

Male U9

Swim
Christopher Kondilios
Aiden Rendford
Louis Leeson

Board
Christopher Kondilios
Aidan Renford
Toby Gough

Sprint
Christopher Kondilios
Payton Tarau
Taoko Samson

Flags
Payton Tarau
Christopher Kondilios
Otto Gerber

Female U8

Wade
Cobi Ryan-Last
Marli Mayne
Clementine Saunders

Sprint
Cobi Ryan-Last
Marli Mayne
Phoebe Crick

Flags
Cobi Ryan-Last
Marli Mayne
Phoebe Crick

Male U8

Wade
Ashton Briffa
Tayte Melia
Jordan Pribadi

Sprint
Ashton Briffa
Tom Maxwell
Jordan Pribadi

Flags
Jordan Pribadi
Remy Mitchell
Tayte Melia
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DIRECTOR OF COMPETITION REPORT

The 2017/18 seaspon has been a much 
improved year for our competition section 
of the club. Coming into the role my main 
focus was converting our nippers into 
successful competitors and lifesavers. 
We moved in the right direction to build 
not only our strength as a team but also 
our team culture. A big thanks to all our 
coaches and supporters this year. 

A special mention to Chris Stokes who ran many hours of 
board and surf training, Dave Lowlett for all his hard work 
coaching the mal riders and Michelle Lo who behind the 
scenes has made life easy for me and countless times pushed 
me in the right direction. 

A big issue that started to become evident to me at the 
start of my tenure was the lack of competition equipment. 
I am proud to say that the club has generously purchased 
2 new racing mals and 2 new adjustable racing skis to 
further develop our athletes. Thanks must go to our local MP 
Michael Daley who has helped us gain a grant to purchase 
a brand new surf boat which is on its way. Thank you to 
Yvette for helping with the painful grant application process. 

Our masters who have traditionally been strong throughout 
the years continued to perform with our “Masterrettes” 
women claiming many medals at carnivals throughout the 
year. Kristy Smith lead the way taking home Bronze in the 
beach sprint and Silver in the flags at the 2018 Masters 
NSW Surf Life Savings Championship. 2018 marked a 
comeback from an old sea dog/club stalwart Michael 
“Murph” Renford. Murph left the state titles chuffed with a 
gold in the Surf Race and Rescue Tube but he was most 
pleased with his Silver in the 130 years Surf teams that he 
shared with Dave Dubois “Dubbo” and Dave Lowlett. 

Other notable results from Masters state titles include a silver 
for Dave Dubois & Shane White in the Board Rescue, Silver 
for David Smith Beach sprint (60 – 64), Silver Jayson Lincoln 
Beach sprint (45 – 49), Gold to Max Murphy beach sprint 
(70+) and Gold for the 230-year minimum Beach relay. 
Combined these 4 masters athletes have done more carnivals 
then I’ve had hot dinners. Great to see they still love it after 
all this time. 

It was very pleasing to see the transition of 4 South 
Maroubra nippers graduates competing for the club all 
summer Drew McJannett, Toby Goldschmidt, Cooper Stokes 
and Luc Christensen. The boys took part in many carnivals 

throughout the season with lots of ups and downs but 
they worked extremely hard on the board and in the surf 
as well as numerous pool sessions a week to ensure their 
conditioning was up to scratch for the rigorous demands 
of multi event carnivals. At the 2018 NSW Open Surf Life 
Savings Championship, Cooper and Luc managed to make 
the Semis of the board rescue at the state titles, these two are 
a team to watch in the near future in this event. Toby, Drew, 
Cooper and Luc all made it through 4 gruelling iron man 
rounds to get into the semis with Drew progressing to the final 
and achieving a respectable 13th place in a tough field. 
Collectively they finished 5th in the swim teams and 6th in 
the Cameron relay. 

Drew McJannett made his club and family proud, the 
South Maroubra nipper graduate survived 3 hard days of 
competition at the NSW Championships to make the final of 
the U15’s Surf Race. Drew got a good start off the line and 
used his fantastic surf skills, acquired over years of training 
at South Maroubra with many great nipper coaches, to 
navigate his way through the break and out to the cans, he 
held strong and powered home never once relinquishing 
the number 1 spot. A flawless finish and dash up the beach 
cemented his win and place in the record books. His team 
mates were thrilled, and Drew was glad to share the moment 
with such a great bunch of boys and parents. 

Never doubt a competitor from South Maroubra.  

Thank You 

TOM MCJANNETT
Director of Competition  

COMPETITION
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OFFICIALS & COACHES 2017/18

OFFICIALS
Carl Briscoe
Bob Byrne
Ray Robinson
Ken Hudson
Peter Steenson
Simon Torsellini
Pam Vallis 

COACHES
Dave Lowlett,
Andrew Newrick 
Phill Stivano 
Chris Stokes
Damien Woods

IRB COMPETITION REPORT

It was an exciting start to the 2018 NSW Sharkskin IRB 
Premiership season at Stockton Beach with the largest ever 
first-round of entries kicking off the season. Two days of 
perfect conditions and weather provided a fantastic start for 
our IRB team and great opportunity for our new drivers to 
shake the nerves. Our team managed to make 12 finals to 
finish off Round 1 of the competition.  

Round 2 was held up at The Lakes which delivered rough 
conditions with our competitors negotiating a challenging 
shore break. Our team banded together to help each other 
out each race of the competition and were able to make it 
to the end. It was a tough two days of competition, resulting 
in 9 finals. While this carnival was challenging, it provided 
great experience for the team for the rest of the season. 

Umina Beach is where our IRB competitors headed to for 
Round 3. Unfortunately, conditions were not in our favour 
with the carnival being cancelled due to dangerous surf 
conditions. With that, our competitors headed home, focused 
on the extra time to prepare for the final round of the series. 

Caves Beach was the host of the final round of the 
premiership series. We only had a small team entered into 

this round but that didn’t stop us from putting our best foot 
forward. The weather was sunny with a chilly wind and 
surf conditions were flat, providing a long course for our 
competitors. Although we had a small team we still managed 
to be in 10 finals to round off the series. We walked away 
with great results for some of our teams in the overall point 
score. South Maroubra came 8th overall out of the 26 clubs 
that competed. 

The NSW IRB State Championships will be held at South 
West Rocks, followed by the IRB Australian Titles held at 
Thirroul. With the two major carnivals fast approaching, our 
team is focusing and gearing up for some great competition! 
I look forward to seeing how our team performs when they 
showcase their racing skills at the championship rounds. 

Looking forward to great performances. 

BRONTE CHADWICK
Winter Touring Manager 

Another season is underway, as our IRB 
Team battles the winter chill and takes to 
the beaches to compete in the NSW IRB 
Premiership, NSW State Championship 
and the SLSA Australian IRB Titles. 
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IRB RESULTS

2018 NSW IRB PREMIERSHIP SERIES

23s Rescue – 2nd Overall 
Will Shaddock, Laurie Golsby & Scott Hobday 

Open Male Rescue – 3rd Overall
Will Shaddock, Laurie Golsby & Scott Hobday 

U23s Mass Rescue – 3rd Overall
Tom King, Austin Wem, Zac King & Issy Heazlewood 

Open Male Mass Rescue – 4th Overall
Will Shaddock, Laurie Golsby, Scott Hobday & Shannel Ryan-Last 

U23s Teams Rescue – 4th Overall
Will Shaddock, Laurie Golsby & Scott Hobday 
Alex Shaddock, Nicholas Pavlakis & Tijana Miles 

45+ Tube Rescue – 4th Overall
Ronny Krite, Andrew Wem & Jake Hannigan 

2018 NSW IRB STATE 
CHAMPIONSHIPS

3RD OVERALL

45+ Mixed Mass - 1st
David Dubois 
Ronny Krite 
Cathie Hall 
Nicole Krite

35+ Mixed Tube - 2nd
David Dubois 
Damien Woods 
Thomas King

U23 Mixed Mass - 1st
William Shaddock 
Laurie Golsby 
Shannel Ryan-Last 
Scott Hobday

Rookie Mixed Mass - 3rd
Scott Hibday 
Laurie Golsby 
Shannel Ryan-Last 
Zac King

35+ Mixed Teams - 2nd
David Dubois 
Ronny Krite 
Cathie Hall 
Damien Woods 
Nicole Krite 
Mitch Dugdale

23s Mixed Teams - 2nd
William Shaddock 
Laurie Golsby 
Scott Hobday 
Alexander Shaddock 
Nicholas Pavlakis 
Tijana Miles

Mens Teams - 3rd
William Shaddock 
Laurie Golsby 
Scott Hobday 
Alexander Shaddock 
Nicholas Pavlakis 
Tijana Miles

45+ Rescue - 1st
David Dubois 
Ronny Krite 
Nicole Krite 
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Starting off with the extraordinary club comradery with all our 
masters. All our competitors not only were exceptional on the 
start line, but they gave many combined hours to patrolling 
our beach.

As a team, South Maroubra Masters competitors came 4th 
in the overall point score at Sydney Branch Championships, 
which was a magnificent effort by all.

At the State Championships in March, our Masters out did 
themselves and placed 13th with over 80 clubs competing. 
Again, a really great result.

Each year our results exceed the previous year, and this 
momentum does not look like it will slow down. Our team 
member base is also increasing year by year, which is 
testimony to the commitment of our members as well as our 
coaches.

Special gratitude goes to all our officials, administration, 
and coaches for their behind the scenes assistance that is so 
important to the team throughout the season.

Some of the highlights at State Championships this season 
from our male competitors:

•	 230 year Male Beach Relay - Gold 
Maxwell Murphy, Andrew Newrick, John Rooney, Jayson 
Lincoln

•	 Michael Renford - Gold 55-59 Male Rescue Tube Race, 
and Surf Race

•	 Jayson Lincoln - Silver 45-49 Male Sprint

•	 Maxwell Murphy - Silver 70 years Beach Flags

•	 130 year Male Surf Team - Silver 
David Dubois, David Lowlett, Michael Renford

•	 David Smith - Silver 60-64 Beach Flags and Beach Sprint

•	 David Dubois and Shane White also brought Bronze 
coloured bling back from State Championships

Our Masteretts second year has been wildly successful too. A 
massive improvement year-on-year has also brought medals 
home for:

•	 Kristy Smith - Silver 40-44 Female Beach Sprint and 
Bronze 40-44 Beach Flags

•	 Masterettes 170 year Female Beach Relay - Bronze 
Kristy Smith, Thelma Milsop, Ashleigh Braeden, Nixy Krite

We also had hugely successful Branch and interclub carnivals 
which our Masters team successfully put their best efforts on 
show in the lead up to the State Championships.

A huge shout out to our veteran competitor Max Murphy who 
was our only Master Competitor at Aussies in Perth this year. 
Max had a very successful championships event winning the 
Gold in the 70 year Sprint, and Bronze in the 70 years Flags.

I will also mention that this year, our Masters did our 
club proud as they competed in the Coolangatta Gold. 
Competition was at its highest level. These Masters 
competitors also trained through winter to compete for the 
Cooly:

•	 David Lowlett, Ronny Krite - Bronze in Open Relay Long 
Course

•	 Kelly Fernandez, Simon Smith, Nixy Krite - Successfully 
completed the Short Course

Overall, it was a spectacular year of Masters competing, 
training, and development. The comradeship has always 
been special in the Masters team, and I am looking forward 
to another successful year ahead.

NIXY KRITE 
Masters Coordinator

MASTERS REPORT 

The 2017/2018 season brought great success 
to South Maroubra in the Masters section.
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SURF LIFE SAVING SYDNEY  
BRANCH CHAMPIONSHIPS

MASTERS

Event Place Name

40-44 Female Sprint 1 Kristy Smith

45-49 Female Sprint 3 Ashleight Breaden

50+ Female Sprint 6 Thelma Milsop

60+ Male Sprint 1 David Smith

60+ Male Sprint 2 John Rooney 

70+ Male Sprint 1 Max Murphy

170 Female Beach Relay 2

200 Male Beach Relay 2

60+ Male Flags 1 David Smith

60+ Male Flags 3 John Rooney 

40-44 Female Flags 1 Kirsty Smith

45-49 Female Flags 3 Ashleight Breaden

50+ Female Flags 4 Thelma Milsop

110 Male Board Relay 3

45-49 Male Surf Race 1 David Lowlett

45-49 Male Surf Race 3 Steve Fraser 

45-49 Male Surf Race 5 David Dubois

50+ Male Surf Race 1 Michael Renford

50-59 Male Board 4 Michael Renford

130 Male Surf Team 3

45-49 Male Tube 1 David Dubois

45-49 Ironman 2 David Lowlett

30-39 Male Surf Ski 2 David Reid

30-39 Male Surf Ski 6 Darren Tannock

45-49 Male Surf Ski 4 David Lowlett

110 Male Ski Relay 2

130 Male Taplin Relay 2

SURF LIFE SAVING NSW  
STATE CHAMPIONSHIPS

OPENS

Event Place Name

U15 Male Surf Race 1 Drew McJannett

MASTERS

Event Place Name

U15 Male Surf Race 1 Drew McJannett

130 yrs min.  
Male Surf Team

2
Michael Renford
David Dubois
David Lowlett

170yrs Min.  
Female Beach Relay

3

Ashleigh Breaden
Nicole Krite
Thelma Milsop
Kristy Smith

230 yr min  
Male Beach Relay

1

Jayson Lincoln
Maxwell Murphy
Andrew Newrick
John Rooney

40-44 Female Beach Flags 2 Kristy Smith

40-44 Female Beach Sprint 3 Kristy Smith

60+ Male Flags 1 David Smith

60+ Male Flags 3 John Rooney 

40-44 Male Board Rescue 3
David Dubois
Shane White

45-49 Male Beach Sprint 2 Jayson Lincoln

55-59 Male Rescue Tube Race 1 Michael Renford

55-59 Male Surf Race 1 Michael Renford

60-64 Male Beach Flags 2 David Smith

60-64 Male Beach Sprint 2 David Smith

70yrs over Male Beach Flags 2 Maxwell Murphy

70yrs over Male Beach Sprint 1 Maxwell Murphy

SURF LIFE SAVING AUSTRALIA  
AUSTRALIAN CHAMPIONSHIPS

MASTERS

Event Place Name

70 Yrs & Over Male Beach Flags 3 Max Murphy

70 Yrs & Over Male Beach Sprint 1 Max Murphy
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After an outstanding start to their junior career, The Rookies 
crew ended up having this season off. After a few attempts 
at filling a vacant seat due to a work opportunity that left us 
a man down, the Rookies enjoyed a season away from the 
intensive rigours of high level competition and enjoyed being 
young men. I can report gladly that the boys are back in the 
boat and looking forward to next season.

In their third consecutive season, The WeaponVets reserves/
masters crew made two crew changes from the previous 
season and showed promise early. Congratulations to Cam 
(Fibro) and Ryan (Guns) who became fathers for the first 
time and let go of the oar handle in place for the nappies. 
Well done and all the best fellas! Steve Boyd and Daniel 
Wizeman were joined by Adam Daly and Danny Kelaita 
and swept by myself.

We raced at only a handful of carnivals before an injury to 
one of the men just before Branch Championships ended the 
season for The WeaponVets.

Our first hit was at Nth Cronulla. Racing in Reserve Grade 
we started with three strong heat races however withdrew 
early due to a work commitment as the carnival went longer 
than expected on the day. Next up was the Queenscliff 
carnival which had a huge entry list for the Reserve grade 

with the best crews in the state on show. The WeaponVets 
displayed their class in a very strong field and finished 3rd in 
the final in good surf. Manly carnival was next, we had an 
up and down day and missed the final by one place, getting 
knocked out in the semi finals. Our final carnival before 
injury was the traditional Coogee carnival which was a 
bitter sweet end. We won the day convincingly in a smaller 
field however this was the last time we hit the water for the 
season.

Recently two new female divisions were added to the open 
program. The u/19 and Reserve grade female divisions are 
now up and running bringing all divisions into line with equal 
men/women categories in each gender. U/19, U/23, 
Reserve and Open divisions now make up the program and 
I can report that we have two girls crews (u/19 and reserve 
women) learning the sport and enjoying the new challenge. 

SURF BOAT REPORT 

The 2018 season was a rebuilding season 
for our club. Due to injuries and some 
withdrawals, The WeaponVets crew were 
our only representatives to make the 
starting line.
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I can also report that we are training up some new members 
with boat experience into coaches and sweeps for the future. 
Watch this space as we continue to rebuild our boat section.

For anyone interested in learning to row, please make 
contact for more information. We are training members as 
young as 14/15y/o with the intention for them to hit the line 
as young juniors and grow into the sport through the u/19 
division.

I would like to thank all the BOM including our fearless 
president, Mr Paul Fownes OAM, Yvette, Linda and the 
whole board for continued support and encouragement of 
our growing boat section. A massive thanks to Michelle and 
the club office team for your assistance through the season 
with admin and entries.

Can I say a big thanks to our wonderful care taking team of 
our club. We are lucky to have these guys looking after our 
club and the gymnasium ensuring things are always set up to 
a high standard. Barry and Leslie- a big thanks for your help 
through the years gone by and into the future seasons.

I would also like to thank our Life Member boaties, Bob 

Byrne (Byrnesy) and Peter Steenson (Dino) for the hours 
put into surfboat rowing as highly credentialed officials 
representing our great club throughout the seasons racing 
calendar.

A special mention to Michael Daley, who also is a great 
supporter to our section. A big thank you to Michael for his 
generous donation helping us to ensure our boats are up to 
date and competitive into the future seasons.

Our sponsors and contributors help us stay on the water 
and we can’t do it without them. If any readers are keen 
to explore sponsorship options please make contact as 
there are various levels and costs of commitment to the 
boat section. All sponsorship and donations are fully tax 
deductible.

I can say personally after not finishing off last season, I am 
dedicated to rebuilding and securing numbers of rowers into 
the future and aiming to get us back to the top of the sport in 
many divisions.

See you on the beach,

PHIL STIVANO
Boat Captain 
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Life Patron
The Honourable Bob Carr
Bill Haigh †

Club Patron
Michael Daley MP

Life Member
Kenneth Arthur
Robert Byrne
Paul Duffy
John Dynan †
Brian Ferguson
Paul Fownes
Ken Hudson
Alan Johnston
Bernard Kelly †
John King †
John Ludlow †
John Marks
Rick McKeon †
Horst Menzel
Alan Morris
Peter Murphy
Maxwell Murphy
John Park
James Parker
Linda Perrin
Kevin Quinn †
Raymond Robinson
Lionel Roser
Yvette Rutherford
John Shaw
Peter Steenson
Phillip Vanny

Reserve Active
Adam Daly
David Dubois
Patricia Garvie
John Jordan
Michael Malone
Paul McJannett
Jarrod Robertson
John Rooney
Gregory Shaw
Robert Stuart
Simon Torsellini
Kevin Underhill
Shane White

Long Service
Ryan Airlie
Graham (LOU) Armstrong
Garry Bennett
Peter Brennan
Stephen Boyd
Carl Briscoe
Ian Brown
Ryan Byrne
Keith Disbery
Phil Dutton
Errol Goldberg
Robert Goodsell
Catherine Hall
Mark Hastings

Terence Ibbott
Cameron James
Vince Johnson
Danny Kelaita
Jayson Lincoln
Christopher Locke
Grant Manning
Shane Moloney
Gregory Morris
Patrick O’Neill
Trevor Perrin
David Reid
Michael Renford
Grant Rutherford
James Ryan
Anthony Shaw
Phillip Stivano
Chris Stokes
Gus Taylor
Daniel Weizman

Active  
(18yrs and over)
Melanie Abbott
Damien Alexiou
David Ammon
Ian Atkins
Josh Barr
Emily Barrett
Alexandra  Bishenden
Maureen Bolawaqatabu
Ashleigh Breaden
Trevor Buckett
Ricky Campbell
Patrick Capaan
Bronte Chadwick
Paul Christensen
Cheryl Christensen
Anita Comyn
Nicole Cooney
John Counter
James Counter
Talina Cruz
Tayla Curry
Johan de Bry
Joao Pedro De Jesus Jorge
Anne De Palacio
Thomas Denigan
Michael Dillon
Norbert Dommel
Mitchell Dugdale
Nicole Dugdale
Jake Edwards
Bradley Ellison
Hailey Ellison
 Anne Engel
Matthew Engel
Kevin Fee
Michael Fernandez
Stephen Fraser
Tohru Fukui
Maria Garay
Marcelo Garay
Emma Garlick
Craig Gibson
Nathan Goldschmidt
Laurie Golsby
Nicholas Guerrera
Ben Hall
Brodie Hampson
Jake Hannigan

Timothy Hargreaves
Brendon Harper
Brendon Harper
Toby Harrison
 Carlos Hernandez 
Quintero
Shane Hillard
Scott Hobday
Melissa Hughes
Amanda Irvine
Paul Israel
Tony Jenkin
Daniel Kerry
Martin Kiernan
Thomas King
Angelo Koukos
Nicole Krite
Ronald Krite
Michael Lette
Ryan Lewis
Natasha Lo
Shaun Longbottom
David Lowlett
 Jay Lulham
Nicholas Lynch
Fabienne Mace
Daniel Mather
Rachelle McCarthy
Thomas McJannett
Lucy McJannett
Lauren McLean
Nicholas  Mellick
Tijana Miles
Brett Milsop
Thelma Milsop
Lisa Morgan
Simon Morrow
Christian Muravolgyi
Katherine Murphy
Fraser Neill
Ben Newell
Kirsten Newrick
Andrew Newrick
Kelly Nichols
Natasha  Norman
Charlie Page
Nicholas Pavlakis
Kat Peatey
Rachel Pelikan
Janice Pereira
Emma Perrin
Hunter Perry
Rene Prochnow
Lewis Raymond
Jonathan Rhoades
Alain Rives
Andrew Rogan
Louise  Ryan
Darren Saunders
Samantha Saunders
William Shaddock
Alexander Shaddock
Jay Shelley
Owen Skjeime
Louise Skjeime
Luke Smith
Jennie Smith
Kristy Smith
Simon Smith
Don Smith
David Smith
Jack Sobczyk

William Spear
Vincent Sperando
Spiro Strattos
Richard Sullivan
Lasz Szabo
Paul  Tainton
Paul Tait
Darren Tannock
Uri Teitler
Andrew Thompson
Alex Tomkins
Max Torsellini
Greg Turton
Melodie Wakim
Emma Walsh
Brock Walsh
Andrew Wem
Codie Wem
Austin Wem
Corinne Wilmotte
Damien Woods
Billy Zaletel

Active  
(15-18 yrs)
Luc Christensen
Remi Defina-Sperando
Byron Colin Edwards
Jasmine Fitzgerald
Archy Fowler
Isabella Garay
Toby Goldschmidt
Finnian Griffith
Luke Harris
Isabelle Heazlewood
Zachary King
Charli Krite
Jake Lo
Yanni MacLeod-Hall
Sara Marta
Sarah Masri
Samarah Melia
Eve  Mitchell – James
Caleb Neill
Finnian O’Neil
Shannel Ryan-Last
Jessica Sawang
Cooper Stokes
Joshua  Taylor
Jake Torsellini
Mack Walsh
Stella Ward

Cadet Member 
(13-15 years)
Lesley Andelman
Kate Arnol
Ruby Brideson
Lucy Cowlishaw
Bridget Crick
Chloe Davis
Tyler Davis
Hugo Defina-Sperando
Jesikah Dillon
Jak Evans
Charlie Farr-Jones
 Brianna Fraser
 Angelina Garay
 Georgia Gionis

 Lisa Hammann
Madeleine Hardy
Charlie Harris
Joshua Hillard
Tom Kerboul LeGrignou
Riki Leamon
Lucas Leondaris
Sean Lewis
Makayla Manu
Drew McJannett
Tali Mezei
Emma Mintoff
Liam Mungovan
Maddison Neill
Zoila Newell
Oscar Ortolani
Maddison Rath
Amelia Ryder
Paula Schubach
Luke Small
Caprice Stokes
Dylan Sullivan
Alexander Thompson
Vin Torsellini
Molly Whitely
Kai Young
Luke Zaletel

Associates
Trudy Anderson
Peter Bambridge
Brian Beck
Ron Blows
Gregory Campbell
Lesley Chidiac
Adam  Crisp
Sean Daunt
Stephen Fisher
Ryan Franklin
Daniel Hardy
Roger Ibbott
Mathew Lawson
Michelle Lo
Albert Mackinnon
Steven Mavridis
Pauline McGuiness
Terry McGuinness
Craig Menzel
Andrew Nikas
Barry Osborne
Peter Penn
Michael Raymond
Geoffrey Rowan
Paul Ryan
Rod Strong
Gareth Swarbrick
Zsolt Szuromi
Zachary Taylor
Pamela Vallis
Philipa Veitch
Mark Worthington
Robert Wurth

Honorary
Cameron Airlie
June Burgess
Bob Carr
Bill Haigh †
Keith McCraw
Henry Morris
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General
George Alexiou
Mai-Lynda Allen 
Raffy Andreoli
Thomas Banfield
Stuart Bargon
Tracey Bloxsom
Leonel Campos Mahecha
Amanda Campos Pascall
Louise Chick
Michael Cleaves
Gemma Collier
Ryan  Colyer
Samantha Cook
Angela Coronica
John Crewe
Nicky Crewe
Brett Dalley
Craig Davis
Warren Day
Aoife Dennison
Kym Derriman
Fiona Devereux
Helen Di Domenico
Walter Dietrich
Sean Doyle
David Driscoll
Terence Dunbar
Chris Effeney
Andrew Ellem
Caitlin Elliott
Kellie Ellis
Luke Ellis
Scott Falvey
Peter Farr-Jones
Karen Fitzgerald
Paul Fitzgerald
Julia Foulkes
Wendy Francis
Krista Gerrard
Jacob Gibbons
Victoria Gibbons
Kevin Gibson
Pascal Giraud
David Golding
Lucy Goodwin
Shannon Gray
Adam Griffiths
Jason Griffiths
Stephen Hafer
Claire Hammond
Andrew Hardy
Corrine Henville
Mathew Henville
Niklas Hippmann
Nathan Hoolahan
Katrina Houston
Chantal Hughes
Karen Iredale
Georgie Israel
Timothy Jeffries
Ray Jenvey
Adrian Jones
Katie Jones
Louise Kelly
Carolyn Kelly
Jean Kerboul
William Kerr
Andrea Kerry
Mark Knackstedt
Peter Kondilios

Lawrence Last
Daniel Lawler
Christopher Lee
Beaux Leeson
Stephen Levett
Ben Liquete
Wayne Lewis
Benn Lim
Beverley Little
George Lloyd
Justin Lo
Madeline Logiacco
Conor Lucey
Brian Madden
Noreen  Madden
Leon Manning
Tracey Manning
Sarah Marshall
Catherine Martire
Marc Masoni
Bass Masri
David Matheson
Jonathon Mattock
Bobbi Mayne
Stephen Mayne
Claire McCabe
Andrew McCabe
Brendan Mcdonald
Louise McDonald
Ben McGowan
Scott McInness
Kim McJannett
Kelly McLean
Darren McLean
Renae McNamara
Adam Melia
Lucas Michael
John Miller
Andrew Moorhouse
William Morgan
Bill Morris
Richard Muirhead
John Muirhead
Liz Nevin
Carlo Ortolani
Joshua Palmer
Anna Pesten
Kera Peters
Helen Petrusa
Anna Pockley
Julie Pritchard
Brie Ranieri
Stephen Redmond
Cindy Redmond
Scott Reisenleiter
Megan Roberts
Adam Robilliard
Matthew Ruse
Trent Rutherford
Emma Ryan
James Shelley
Brett Sheridan
Denisse Silva
Cate Smith
Phillipa Stanley
Jacqui Stanton
Gavin Stevens
Tracey Teitler
Renee Thomlinson
Scott Thomlinson
Mary Jayne Tier
Agustina Torales

Yohan Touzard
Chris Travis
Jodie Travis
Dave Trudinger
Mark Truran
Quinta Turton
Daniel Vaughan
Michelle Walker
Paul Watson
Teegan West
Louise Wheeler
Stewart Wheeler
Helen White
Deb White
Philippe Wilmotte
Lucy Wood
Chris Young
Daniela Ziino-Rodriguez

Under 14 
Bronte Munday
Natasha Ward

Under 13
Liliana Alexiou
Leo Astridge
Chelsea Barber
Benedict Christensen
Rio De Weever
Joiful Fotu-Moala
Dimitra Gionis
Ryan Goldschmidt
Jackson Gray
Hannah Healey
Zoe Iredale
Malikye Kessie
Jarvis Leith
Zena Masri
Gustave Presse
Madison Reay
Ryan Robbie
Micheal Samson
Jamie Skene
Alexandra Tait
Sarah Teitler
Lucas Young

Under 12
Freya Buckett
Briena Connon
Matthew Crossingham
Lucas Dubois
Tom Farr-Jones
Elisa Garay
Jessica  Gibbons
Sophia Gionis
Ruby Gray
Sienna Hafer
Jack Halloran
Zac Iredale
Kai Jones
Alma Lawrie
Bailey Leighton
Gabriel Leondaris
Toby Meagher
Chloe Mintoff
Siennah Morgan
Harry Mullins- Donoghoe
Siara Ortolani

Daniel Patrick
Alexander Polihronas
Adrien Presse
William Reay
Charlotte Ryan
Mackenzie Schoultz
Peter Shaw
Jessie Skene
Amy Skuodas
Romain Spella-Barberet
Chanelle  Stokes
Lou-anne Talichet
Nate Tucker

Under 11
Oliver Alcaraz
Matthew Alexiou Alexa 
Argy
Victor Coulet
Zoe Curtis
Jade Dawes
Teoni De Weever
Maximo Di Blasio
Tom Donaldson
Luana Ellis
Tyler Ellis
Amaury Faures
Ruby Fletcher
Zane Ford
Ashley Goldschmidt
Alanna Griffiths
Emma Hammann
Ava Hargreaves
Brendan Hurwood
Sienna Israel
Feliks Ivashov
Leo Jreige
Maia Kerboul Le Grignou
Ebrel Kerry
Vlad Law
Maddison Lawler
Jagger Leith
Stirling Mackenzie
Keilani Manu
Jaiden Marshall
Milla McKellar
Lillie McLean
Xavier  Milsop
Frederick Mravec
Riley Mungovan
Ben Murphy
Punorn Narkprasert
Isabella Newell
William Pappas
Elliot Pawsey
Frankie Pedder
Lily Renford
Carson Rhoades
Amelie Rimondi
Willow Robinson
Sarah Ruse
Felix Ryder
Eugene Samson
Gina Schubach
Luini Sete-Falemaka
Mila Sheridan
Noah Teitler
Chloe Thomlinson
Pear Thong-Uam
Pierre Touzard
Marcus Tsimbler

Finlay Turton
Amelie Vaughan
Kye Wallace
Charlie White

Under 10
Jasmine Alexiou
Juliette Andersen-Allen
Sarah Blackford
Jack Brandtman
Luke Breaden
Vectis Buckett
Noah Burnham
Zoe Bush
Benjamin Capaan
Jake Chumbley
Harry Crewe
Zoe Crick
Jasper Culshaw
Joe Dempsey Martin
Genevieve Dommel
William Dubois
Sam Dworkin
Lola Evans
Zac Evans
Mackinley Folk
Dyzire Fotu-Moala
Gorjez Fotu-Moala
James Gibbons
Rose Gibson
Isabelle Glass
Lucas Goldberg
Lola Gralton
Holly Hamilton
Dexter Harding
Jessica Henville
Elena Hillard
Sena Hippmann
Mia Holdaway
 Matilda Holland
Kyle Houston
Ethan Hudson
Zac Jones
Georgie Kiernan
Kian Lackey
Eleanor Lawrie
Nicholas Lee
Sienna Leighton
Samuel Lennon
Isabella Logiacco
Sophie Lucey
Daniel Lynch
Mia Mancuso
Rachel Marcus
Isla Mazor
Allister McDonald
David Mitchell
Scarlet Mitchell
Tommy Morgan
Luke Newrick
Olivia Obaid
Ursela O’Sullivan
Isabelle Parrab
Benjamin Pelikan
Nicholas Polihronas
Kari Prendergast
Amy Pribadi
Sienna Roberts
Blair Rossiter
Maya Rowland
Matilda Saunders
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Adrian Shah Jr
Adam Sims
Charlize Smith
Mia Smith
Zac Sperring
Liv Talichet
Samantha Truran
Zoe Veigel
Jack Wallington
Mia Woods-Hughes
Taj Young

Under 9
Teo Alcaraz
Jake Anderson
Cindy Barahona
Finnian Best
Isaac Booth
Zofia Breen
Alexia Brustolin
Adam Burton
Nicholas Byrne
Lily Carter
Ming Chen-Smith
Essie Christodoulou
Neo Coelho
Maisie  Collard
Cruz Cooke
Harrison Cooke
Kingston Cooke
Aurelien Coulet
Ben Curtis
Sophie Cuthbert
Lance Denigan
Isabella Di Blasio
Amy Dickson
Luke Doyle
Daniel Driscoll
Ariane Elfis
Xanthe Elfis
Oscar Falvey
Benji Fine
Piper Fittler
Grace Fletcher
Otto Gerber
Ruby Golding
Toby Gough
Henry Hafer
Hannah Harper
Emily Henville
Zahlia Hickey
Hayden Holford
Tyla Hoolahan
Carter Hughes
Nicholas Hurwood
Syd Israel
Lada Ivashova
Madelyn James
Cara Kane
Hannah Kerr
Hannah Khachan
Beau Knight
Cleo Koch
Christopher Kondilios
Olivia Laird
Dylan Lane
Kingston Law
Louis Leeson
Zoe Leondaris
Sebastian Lloyd-Paul
Charlotte Lulham

Lila MacPherson
Grace Madden
Lachlan Maurice
Jack Mitchell
Iris Mordue
Tiahlee Morgan
Daniel Morrow
Noah Munday
James Newell
Billy Nicoletti
Chloe Niforas
Josie Nijam
Ellie Nolan
Ned Panlilio
Sierra Papps-Ingelmo
Nathaniel Pawsey
Xavier Peatey
 Charli Reisenleiter
Aidan Renford
Evie Ricketson
Samantha Robbie
Nathan Rouillard
Will  Ryan
Taoko Samson
Josephine Semple
Wanda Skuodas
Dylan Sperring
Maggie Sullivan
Payton Tarau
Evie Thomlinson
Nica Thongsri
Avalon Tucker
Lola Westerman
Ruby Wheeler
Thomas Wood

Under 8
Lola Abraham
Sofia Antipova
Ayden Assassa
Elliot Bargon
Anastasia Barr Berrocal
Mateo Benito- Withers
Zahra Bouhoutsos
Neil Bradley
Ryan Bramham
Dylan Branagan
Sophie Brandtman
Daniel Breaden
Ashton Briffa
Joe Budin
Abby Bui
Natalia Campos Pascall
Joshua Capaan
Jack Chen-Smith
Tisya Chopra
Lucy Christian
Georgia Cleaves
Taliyah Clydesdale
Benjamin Coakley
Alexander Colyer,
Dylan Crewe
Phoebe Crick
Pyper De Weever
Julianna Dommel
Jessica Dworkin
Piper Ellis
Oscar Evans
Edward Francis
Thandie Gibson
Amelia Gil

Molly Gill
Andrea Glynn
Archie Goulding
Kingsley Grover
Brodie Hack
Ellie Halpin
Charlie Hamilton
Aaron Harding
Nikolai Hennessy
Dominic Hurtado
Odin Huve
Robert Johnson
Adrian Kaiser
Conor Kane
Mia Kapellas
Isaac Kerry
Archie Killorn
Charley Lawler
Oscar Lennon
Hugo Lescop
Matthew Lichaa
Leo Liquete
Liam Lloyd
Poppy Lloyd
Owen Lloyd-Jones
Justin Lo Nero
Alexander Logiacco
Sonny Mackrill
Rafael Marcus
Jessica Marshall
Tyler Mason
Emily Masri
Isabella Matthews
Clementine Mattock
Chloe Maurice
Tom Maxwell
Marli Mayne
Dexter McAllister
Ffyon McCabe
Cameron McDonald
Finn McGowan
Jade McInness
Ryan McNamara
Connor Meindl
Tayte Melia
Remy Mitchell
Maxim Mitsios
Eabha Morrissey
Alexia Neofytou
Lola Nevin
Lila O’Keeffe
Xavier O’Sullivan
Kostan Papadopoulos
Matilda Patoka
Alicia Phair-Tello
Charlee Potter
Jeremy Pounder
Xavier Pouzet
Jordan Pribadi
Zavier Prichard
Sophie Prochnow
Bryce Rhoades
Poppy Rimondi
Sammy Robilliard
Zoe Robinson
Xavier Rodriguez
Xavier Rojas
Hamish Rundell
Jone Russell
Cobi Ryan-Last
Clementine Saunders
Archie Shatar

Brock Smith
Isaac Smith
Zoe Smith
Zoe Smith
Conor Spalding
Jackson Sparrowhawk
Charlotte Spencer
Blake Sullivan
James Tainton
Byron Thomas
Pazzy Thong-Uam
Maxime Touzard
Joshua Trabuio
Jenson Travis
Max Tuffs
Harper Vaughan
Maia Veigel
Kye Waters
Georgia Watson
Baylee Wilson
Paul Wolstenholme
Nate Young

Under 7
Amelia Alexiou
Bastien Alliaume
Annabelle Ammon
Felix Andersen-Allen
Apollo Argy
Max Axiom
Cruz Barahona
Billy Beetson
Alana Jo Bezjak
Charles Booth
James Butler- Bennett
Benjamin Byrne
Grace Calder
Sofia Cleverley
Zack Clydesdale
Samuel Collard
 Harley Connell
Timothy Costa
Oliver de Bry
Alexandra Derham
Sofia Dunkley
Matilda Effeney
Emmanuelle Elfis
Poppy Elliott
Tyler Evans
Ben Ferguson
Eden Field
Peejay Galea
Emmeline Giraud
Stella Glass
Joshua Gough
Alexandra Gralton
Lauren Griffiths
Amelia Hall
Finn Hargreaves
Alexandria Harmer
Mila Hauptmann
Jack Hickman
Ada Hippmann
Matthias Hippmann
Bailey Holdaway
Francesca Hudson
Kurt Hunter
Justine Jalbert-Locke
Kate Kaiser
Tiana Katrib
Jackson Kimber

Jenna King
Sienna Knight
Savannah  Kogias
Isabel Laird
Inez Leal
River Leighton
Kikki Leith
Elyse Levett
Isaac Lichaa
Kobe Lim
Lachlan Litherland
Lola Lucey
Olivia Lucey
Richard Lynch
Liam Madden
Louis Mansukh
Gaetan Masoni
Lucas Massey
Emma Matheson
Emily Maxwell
Emily Mayer
Aila McCue
Jacob McLean
Oscar McMahon
Luke Melville
Madeleine Metzger
Theo Michael
Charli Mitchell
Lily Mitchell
Joe Moorhouse
Charlyse Morgan
Evelyn Morrison
Mila Morrow
Chloe Morton
Jayden Newrick
Thomas Nicoletti
Luca Nott
Grace O’Keeffe
Scarlett Olive
Remi Oosting
Luke O’Sullivan
Harvey Palmer
Tobias Panlilio
Michael Pappas
Zachary Parrab
Riley Peatey
Isaac Pelikan
Ethan Perez
Fiona Perry
Alisara Phayungporn
Jay Prendergast
Camille Presse
Marisa Pribadi
Emily Rana
Sophie Rodgers
Elora Rogan
Luisa Rogan
Molly Rowland
Bailee Samuels
Thomas Sharp
Jade Sheridan
Enda Spalding
Rohan Thapa
Ariadne Trudinger
Angus Turton
Harrison Wallington
 Sienna Walton
Kevin Welter
Charlie  Willmot
Ignatius Wiseman
Vincenzo Witare
Grace Wixted
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Ryan Yip
Hilary Zhang

Under 6
Luca Alcaraz
Kira Allen
Chloe_Jayne Ammon
Oliver Anderson
Emily Baker
Arlo Banfield
Ayrton Barrie
Kiah Bell-Parsons
Max Bettschen
Dalila Birks
Isabella Bouhoutsos
Lucas Bradley
Piper Bramham
Jakub Breen
Makayla Brettle
Eva Jade Briffa
Jazlyn Briffa
Amber Brown
Isis Buckett
Grace Campbell
Leroy Campbell
Thomas Capaan
Gabriel Capdevielle
Aidan Carpenter
Henri Carter-Kelly
Agnes  Cherry-Nguyen
Robert Clarke
Ella Clayton
Sasha Coakley
Annabella Colyer
Georgia Conquest
Charlotte Cooke
Taj Cooke
Isla Crawford
Scarlett Crewe
Olivia Cullen
Brock Dalley
Flynn Davis
Ziggy Day
Kathleen Denigan
Caitlyn Di Domenico
Sean Dickson
Maxwell Dunn
Charlize Elder
Abigail Ellem
Charlotte Fabri
Thomas Fagundes
Bailey Fitzgerald
Archer Folk
Raphael Forman
Indigo Fraser
Banjo Gardner
Chloe Gardner
Isabella Gibbons
Sierra Gibson
Madeleine Gill
Cooper Glenn
Darius Grover
Oliver Hack
Oscar Harrison
Ty Healey
Natalie Helikarova
Mitchell Henville
Billy Holford
Benjamin Hunter
Jack Hunter
Oscar Jacotine

Emily James
Maggie Jasczyk
Emily Jeffries
Josh Jenkin
Maya Kanagaratnam
Jake Katrib
Drew Kendall
Liam Knibbs
Finn Kratovil
Remy Leeson
Grace Logiacco
Kai Lowlett-Richards
Gerard Mackenzie
Sophie Maley
Logan Manning
Molly Mattock
Rylan Mayne
Basil McAllister
Ioan McCabe
Hugh McDonald
Arran McMullan
Fergus Meindl
Tenison Millward
Louie Mordue
Amelie O’Sullivan
George Page
Saoirse Palmer
Joshua Patoka
Mason Peters
Olivia Phair-Tello
Nachapol Phayungporn
Tahlia Pouzet
Archie Pritchard
Fin Quince
Jack Quince
Rocky  Ranieri
Tejae Ratai
Jayden Roberts
Jess Robilliard
Ivy Rodriguez
Juliette Roux
Katy Rowland
Kalani Russell
Penelope Savva
Louise Shaw
Matilda Shaw
Kayla Shelley
Tate Simpkins
Catherine Smiljan
Valentine Spencer
Ava Sprague
Ava Stevens
Matteo Sudries-Leroy
Hart Sullivan
Luka Summerhayes
 Dylan Thomson
Hamish Thomson
Harry Trabuio
Cole Tucker
Amelie Ung
Lachlan Wakim
Jack Watson
Finn West
Ellen Wheeler
Penelope White
Mia Young




